# UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

### **SCHEDULE 14A**

PROXY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 14(a) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

Filed by	y the Ro	egistrant ⊠
Filed b	y a Part	y other than the Registrant $\square$
Check	the app	ropriate box:
	Conf Defin Defin	ninary Proxy Statement  idential, for Use of the Commission Only (as permitted by Rule 14a-6(e)(2))  itive Proxy Statement  itive Additional Materials  iting Materials Pursuant to §240.14a-12
		MyMD Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (Name of Registrant as Specified in Its Charter)
		N/A (Names of Person(s) Filing Proxy Statement, if other than the Registrant)
Paymer	nt of Fil	ing Fee (check the appropriate box):
$\boxtimes$	No fe	re required
	Fee c	omputed on table below per Exchange Act Rules 14a-6(i)(4) and 0-11.
	(1)	Title of each class of securities to which transaction applies:
	(2)	Aggregate number of securities to which transaction applies:
	(3)	Per unit price or other underlying value of transaction computed pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 0-11 (Set forth the amount on which the filing fee is calculated and state how it was determined):
	(4)	Proposed maximum aggregate value of transaction:
	(5)	Total fee paid:
	Fee p	aid previously with preliminary materials.
		k box if any part of the fee is offset as provided by Exchange Act Rule 0-11(a)(2) and identify the filing for which the offsetting fee was paid previously. Identify the ous filing by registration statement number, or the form or schedule and the date of its filing.
	(1)	Amount Previously Paid:
	(2)	Form, Schedule or Registration Statement No.:
	(3)	Filing Party:
	(4)	Date Filed:



To the Stockholders of MyMD Pharmaceuticals, Inc.:

You are cordially invited to attend the 2021 Annual Meeting of Stockholders (the "Annual Meeting") of MyMD Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (the "Company"), to be conducted in a virtual format only via live audio webcast at 10:00 a.m., Eastern Time, on Wednesday, December 29, 2021, at <a href="https://www.virtualshareholdermeeting.com/MYMD2021">www.virtualshareholdermeeting.com/MYMD2021</a>.

In light of public health concerns regarding the coronavirus ("COVID-19") pandemic, this year's Annual Meeting will be conducted in a virtual format only in order to assist in protecting the health and well-being of our stockholders and employees and to provide access to our stockholders regardless of geographic location. Stockholders will not be able to attend the Annual Meeting in person; however, stockholders of record will be able to participate, vote electronically and submit questions during the live webcast of the Annual Meeting by visiting <a href="https://www.virtualshareholdermeeting.com/MYMD2021">www.virtualshareholdermeeting.com/MYMD2021</a> and entering the 16-digit control number found on the enclosed voting form. If you encounter any difficulties accessing the virtual Annual Meeting, please call the technical support number available on the virtual meeting page on the morning of the Annual Meeting.

Your vote is very important, regardless of the number of shares of our voting securities that you own. Whether or not you expect to be present at the Annual Meeting, after receiving the proxy materials, please vote as promptly as possible to ensure your representation and the presence of a quorum at the Annual Meeting. As an alternative to voting during the Annual Meeting, you may vote via the Internet, by telephone, or by signing, dating, and returning the proxy card that is mailed. If your shares are held in the name of a broker, trust, bank or other nominee, and you receive these materials through your broker or through another intermediary, please complete and return the materials in accordance with the instructions provided to you by such broker or other intermediary or contact your broker directly in order to obtain a proxy issued to you by your nominee holder to attend the meeting and vote in person. Failure to do so may result in your shares not being eligible to be voted by proxy at the Annual Meeting.

On behalf of the Board of Directors, I urge you to submit your vote as soon as possible, even if you currently plan to attend the meeting in person.

Thank you for your support of our company. I look forward to seeing you at the virtual Annual Meeting.

By Order of the Board,

/s/ Joshua Silverman

Joshua Silverman Chairman of the Board of Directors

November 22, 2021



MyMD Pharmaceuticals, Inc. 855 N. Wolfe Street, Suite 623 Baltimore, MD 21205 (856) 848-8698

#### NOTICE OF 2021 ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS

#### TO BE HELD ON DECEMBER 29, 2021

The 2021 Annual Meeting of Stockholders (the "Annual Meeting") of MyMD Pharmaceuticals, Inc., a New Jersey corporation (the "Company"), will be held at 10:00 a.m. Eastern Time, on Wednesday, December 29, 2021, in a virtual format only via live audio website at <a href="https://www.virtualshareholdermeeting.com/MYMD2021">www.virtualshareholdermeeting.com/MYMD2021</a>. We will consider and act on the following items of business at the Annual Meeting:

- 1. Election of six (6) directors to hold office for a one year term and until their successors are elected and qualified or until their earlier incapacity, removal or resignation;
- 2. Ratification the appointment of Morison Cogen LLP as the Company's independent registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2021; and
- 3. Such other matters as may properly come before the Annual Meeting or any adjournment(s) or postponement(s) thereof.

Stockholders are referred to the Proxy Statement for more detailed information with respect to the matters to be considered at the Annual Meeting. After careful consideration, the Board of Directors recommends a vote "FOR" Proposals 1 and 2.

In light of public health concerns regarding the COVID-19 pandemic, this year's Annual Meeting will be conducted in a virtual format only in order to assist in protecting the health and well-being of our stockholders and employees and to provide access to our stockholders regardless of geographic location. Stockholders will not be able to attend the Annual Meeting in person; however, stockholders of record will be able to participate, vote electronically and submit questions during the live webcast of the Annual Meeting by visiting <a href="https://www.virtualshareholdermeeting.com/MYMD2021">www.virtualshareholdermeeting.com/MYMD2021</a> and entering the 16-digit control number found on the enclosed voting form. If you encounter any difficulties accessing the virtual Annual Meeting, please call the technical support number available on the virtual meeting page on the morning of the Annual Meeting.

The Board of Directors has fixed the close of business on November 8, 2021, as the record date (the "Record Date") for the Annual Meeting. Only holders of record of shares of our common stock and Series D Preferred Stock on the Record Date are entitled to receive notice of the Annual Meeting and to vote at the Annual Meeting or at any postponement(s) or adjournment(s) of the Annual Meeting. A complete list of registered stockholders entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting will be available for examination during normal business hours for ten (10) calendar days before the Annual Meeting at our address above. To the extent office access is impracticable due to the recent COVID-19 pandemic, you may email Karen Smith of Advantage Proxy, Inc., our proxy solicitor, at ksmith@advantageproxy.com for alternative arrangements to examine the stockholder list. The email should state the purpose of the request and provide proof of ownership of our voting securities as of the Record Date. The stockholder list will also be available online during the Annual Meeting.

#### YOUR VOTE AND PARTICIPATION IN THE COMPANY'S AFFAIRS ARE IMPORTANT.

If your shares are registered in your name, even if you plan to attend the Annual Meeting or any postponement or adjournment of the Annual Meeting in person, we request that you complete, date, sign and mail the enclosed form of proxy in accordance with the instructions set out in the form of proxy and in the Proxy Statement to ensure that your shares will be represented at the Annual Meeting.

If your shares are held in the name of a broker, trust, bank or other nominee, and you receive these materials through your broker or through another intermediary, please complete and return the materials in accordance with the instructions provided to you by such broker or other intermediary or contact your broker directly in order to obtain a proxy issued to you by your nominee holder to attend the Annual Meeting and vote in person. Failure to do so may result in your shares not being eligible to be voted by proxy at the Annual Meeting.

By Order of the Board,

/s/ Chris Chapman

Chris Chapman, M.D. Chief Medical Officer and President

November 22, 2021

#### TABLE OF CONTENTS

About the Annual Meeting	2
Proposal 1: Election of Directors	7
Corporate Governance	10
Corporate Governance Reforms	10
Code of Business Ethics and Conduct and Whistleblower Policy	10
Board Composition and Committees	10
Director Independence	11
Board Committees, Meetings and Attendance	11
Director Nominations	14
Board Leadership Structure and Role in Risk Oversight	15
Communications with Directors	16
Involvement in Certain Legal Proceedings	16
<u>Director Compensation</u>	17
Stock Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management	18
Certain Relationships and Related Transactions	19
Delinquent Section 16(a) Reports	20
Executive Compensation	21
Executive Officers	21
Summary Compensation Table	22
Narrative Disclosure to Summary Compensation Table	22
Summary Compensation Table (MyMD Florida)	24
Narrative Disclosure to Summary Compensation Table (MyMD Florida)	25
Equity Compensation (MyMD Florida)	26
Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End	27
Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End (MyMD Florida)	27
Other Elements of Compensation(MyMD Florida)	27
Potential Payments Upon Termination of Employment or Change in Control (MyMD Florida)	27
Equity Compensation Plans	28
Equity Compensation Plan Information	35
Audit Committee Matters	36
Audit Committee Report	36
Fees to Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm	37
Pre-Approval Policies and Procedures	37
Proposal 2: Ratification of the Appointment of Morison Cogen LLP as Our Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm for the 2021 Fiscal Year	38
Other matters	39

MYMD PHARMACEUTICALS, INC. 855 N. Wolfe Street, Suite 623 Baltimore, MD 21205 (856) 848-8698

# PROXY STATEMENT FOR 2021 ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS To be Held on December 29, 2021

Unless the context otherwise requires, references in this Proxy Statement to "we," "us," "our," "the Company," or "MyMD" refer to MyMD Pharmaceuticals, Inc., a New Jersey corporation, and its consolidated subsidiaries as a whole. In addition, unless the context otherwise requires, references to "stockholders" are to the holders of our voting securities, which consist of our common stock, no par value, and our Series D Convertible Preferred Stock (the "Series D Preferred Stock") entitled to vote at the 2021 annual meeting of stockholders of the Company (the "Annual Meeting").

The accompanying proxy is solicited by the Board of Directors (the "Board") on behalf of MyMD Pharmaceuticals, Inc. to be voted at the Annual Meeting to be held on December 29, 2021, at the time and platform and for the purposes set forth in the accompanying Notice of Annual Meeting of Stockholders (the "Notice") and at any adjournment(s) or postponement(s) of the Annual Meeting. In light of public health concerns regarding the COVID-19 pandemic, this year's Annual Meeting will be conducted in a virtual format only in order to assist in protecting the health and well-being of our stockholders and employees and to provide access to our stockholders regardless of geographic location. Stockholders will not be able to attend the Annual Meeting in person; however, stockholders of record will be able to participate, vote electronically and submit questions during the live webcast of the Annual Meeting. This Proxy Statement and accompanying form of proxy are dated November 22, 2021 and are expected to be first sent or given to stockholders on or about November 22, 2021.

The executive offices of the Company are located at, and the mailing address of the Company is 855 N. Wolfe Street, Suite 623, Baltimore, MD 21205.

## IMPORTANT NOTICE REGARDING THE AVAILABILITY OF PROXY MATERIALS FOR THE STOCKHOLDER MEETING TO BE HELD ON DECEMBER 29, 2021:

Our official Notice of Annual Meeting of Stockholders, Proxy Statement, Proxy Card and 2020 Annual Report to Stockholders are available at <a href="https://www.virtualshareholdermeeting.com/MYMD2021">www.virtualshareholdermeeting.com/MYMD2021</a>.

On or about November 22, 2021, we began mailing printed copies of the proxy materials to stockholders.

1

#### ABOUT THE ANNUAL MEETING

#### What is a proxy?

A proxy is another person that you legally designate to vote your stock. If you designate someone as your proxy in a written document, that document is also called a "proxy" or a "proxy card." If you are a "street name" holder, you must obtain a proxy from your broker or nominee in order to vote your shares in person at the Annual Meeting.

#### What is a proxy statement?

A proxy statement is a document that regulations of the SEC require that we give to you when we ask you to sign a proxy card to vote your stock at the Annual Meeting.

#### What is "householding" and how does it affect me?

With respect to eligible stockholders who share a single address, we may send only one Proxy Statement to that address unless we receive instructions to the contrary from any stockholder at that address. This practice, known as "householding," is designed to reduce our printing and postage costs. However, if a stockholder of record residing at such address wishes to receive a separate notice or proxy statement in the future, he or she may contact MyMD Pharmaceuticals, Inc., by sending an email to privard@mymd.com, Attn: General Counsel, or calling (856) 848-8698 and asking for Mr. Rivard. Eligible stockholders of record receiving multiple copies of our Notice or Proxy Statement can request householding by contacting us in the same manner. Stockholders who own shares through a bank, broker or other intermediary can request householding by contacting the intermediary.

We hereby undertake to deliver promptly, upon written or oral request, a copy of the Notice or Proxy Statement to a stockholder at a shared address to which a single copy of the document was delivered. Requests should be directed to the address or phone number set forth above.

#### What is the purpose of the Annual Meeting?

At our Annual Meeting, stockholders will act upon the matters outlined in the Notice, which include the following:

- (1) Election of six (6) directors to serve as directors on our Board of Directors to serve until our 2022 Annual Meeting of Stockholders or until successors have been duly elected and qualified ("Proposal 1").
- (2) Ratification of the appointment of Morison Cogen LLP as our independent registered public accounting firm for the 2021 fiscal year ("Proposal 2").
- (3) Such other business as may arise and that may properly be conducted at the Annual Meeting or any adjournment or postponement thereof.

#### What should I do if I receive more than one set of voting materials?

You may receive more than one set of voting materials, including multiple copies of the Notice or this Proxy Statement and multiple proxy cards or voting instruction card. For example, if you hold your shares in more than one brokerage account, you will receive a separate voting instruction card for each brokerage account in which you hold shares. Similarly, if you are a stockholder of record and hold shares in a brokerage account, you will receive a Notice for shares held in your name and a voting instruction card for shares held in "street name." Please follow the separate voting instructions that you received for your shares of common stock held in each of your different accounts to ensure that all of your shares are voted.

2

#### What is the record date and what does it mean?

The record date to determine the stockholders entitled to notice of and to vote at the Annual Meeting is the close of business on November 8, 2021 (the "Record Date"). The Record Date is established by the Board as required by New Jersey law. On the Record Date, 37,648,020 shares of common stock were issued and outstanding. On the Record Date, 72,992 shares of Series D Preferred Stock were issued and outstanding and pursuant to the terms of the Series D Preferred Stock as set forth in the certificate of designation for the Series D Preferred Stock, the holder of Series D Preferred Stock is entitled to 36,496 votes on the proposals described in this Proxy Statement. See "What are the voting rights of the stockholders?" below.

#### Who is entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting?

Holders of common stock and the Series D Preferred Stock at the close of business on the Record Date may vote at the Annual Meeting.

#### What are the voting rights of the stockholders?

The Company has two outstanding classes of voting stock entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting, common stock and Series D Preferred Stock. Each holder of

common stock is entitled to one vote per share of common stock on all matters to be acted upon at the Annual Meeting. Each holder of Series D Preferred Stock is entitled to the number of votes equal to the number of whole shares of common stock into which the shares of Series D Preferred Stock held by such holder are then convertible with respect to any and all matters presented to the stockholders for their action or consideration. Holders of the Series D Preferred Stock vote together with the holders of common stock as a single class, except as provided by law and except as set forth in the respective certificates of designation for the Series D Preferred Stock. Holders of our common stock and Series D Preferred Stock will vote together as a single class on all matters described in this Proxy Statement.

The holders of the shares entitled to cast a majority of the votes at a meeting of stockholders shall constitute a quorum at such meeting. If a quorum is not present or represented at the Annual Meeting, then the Chairman at the meeting may adjourn the meeting from time to time, without notice other than announcement at the meeting, until a quorum is present or represented.

#### What is the difference between a stockholder of record and a "street name" holder?

If your shares are registered directly in your name with Action Stock Transfer, LLC, the Company's stock transfer agent, you are considered the stockholder of record with respect to those shares. The Notice has been sent directly to you by the Company.

If your shares are held in a stock brokerage account or by a bank or other nominee, the nominee is considered the record holder of those shares. You are considered the beneficial owner of these shares, and your shares are held in "street name." The Notice or Proxy Statement and voting instruction card have been forwarded to you by your nominee. As the beneficial owner, you have the right to direct your nominee concerning how to vote your shares by using the voting instructions the nominee included in the mailing or by following such nominee's instructions for voting.

#### What is a broker non-vote?

Broker non-votes occur when shares are held indirectly through a broker, bank or other intermediary on behalf of a beneficial owner (referred to as held in "street name") and the broker submits a proxy but does not vote for a matter because the broker has not received voting instructions from the beneficial owner and (i) the broker does not have discretionary voting authority on the matter or (ii) the broker chooses not to vote on a matter for which it has discretionary voting authority. Under the rules of the New York Stock Exchange (the "NYSE") that govern how brokers may vote shares for which they have not received voting instructions from the beneficial owner, brokers are permitted to exercise discretionary voting authority only on "routine" matters when voting instructions have not been timely received from a beneficial owner. Proposal 2 is considered a "routine matter." Therefore, if you do not provide voting instructions to your broker regarding such proposal, your broker will be permitted to exercise discretionary voting authority to vote your shares on such proposal. In the absence of specific instructions from you, your broker does not have discretionary authority to vote your shares with respect to Proposal 1.

3

#### How do I vote my shares?

If you are a record holder, you may vote your shares at the Annual Meeting in person or by proxy.

- You may submit your proxy on the Internet or by phone. Stockholders may vote via the Internet atwww.proxyvote.com or by phone (as per instructions on the proxy card), 24 hours per day and seven days per week. You will need the control number included on your proxy card or voting instruction form. Votes submitted via the Internet or phone must be received by 11:59 p.m., Eastern Time, on Tuesday, December 28, 2021.
- You may submit your proxy by mail. Stockholders may vote by signing and dating the proxy card or voting instruction form and mailing it in the enclosed prepaid and addressed envelope. If you mark your choices on the card or voting instruction form, your shares will be voted as you instruct.
- You may vote during the Annual Meeting. Instructions on how to vote while participating in the Annual Meeting via live webcast are posted at <a href="https://www.virtualshareholdermeeting.com/MYMD2021">www.virtualshareholdermeeting.com/MYMD2021</a>.

The proxy is fairly simple to complete, with specific instructions on the electronic ballot, telephone or card. By completing and submitting it, you will direct the designated person (known as "proxy") to vote your stock at the Annual Meeting in accordance with your instructions. The Board has appointed Chris Chapman, M.D. to serve as the proxy for the Annual Meeting.

Your proxy will be valid only if you complete and return it before the Annual Meeting. If you properly complete and transmit your proxy but do not provide voting instructions with respect to a proposal, then the designated proxies will vote your shares "FOR" for Proposals 1 and 2. We do not anticipate that any other matters will come before the Annual Meeting, but if any other matters properly come before the meeting, then the designated proxies will vote your shares in accordance with applicable law and their judgment.

If you hold your shares in "street name," your bank, broker or other nominee should provide to you a request for voting instructions along with the Company's proxy solicitation materials. By completing the voting instruction card, you may direct your nominee how to vote your shares. If you partially complete the voting instruction but fail to complete one or more of the voting instructions, then your nominee may be unable to vote your shares with respect to the proposal as to which you provided no voting instructions. See "What is a broker non-vote?" Alternatively, if you want to vote your shares in person at the Annual Meeting, you must contact your nominee directly in order to obtain a proxy issued to you by your nominee holder. Note that a broker letter that identifies you as a stockholder is not the same as a nominee-issued proxy. If you fail to bring a nominee-issued proxy to the Annual Meeting, you will not be able to vote your nominee-held shares in person at the Annual Meeting.

#### Who counts the votes?

All votes will be tabulated by Ian Rhodes, the inspector of election appointed for the Annual Meeting. Each proposal will be tabulated separately.

#### Can I vote my shares at the Annual Meeting?

Yes. If you are a stockholder of record, you may vote your shares at the Annual Meeting by submitting your vote electronically during the Annual Meeting.

If you hold your shares in "street name," you may vote your shares in person only if you obtain a proxy issued by your bank, broker or other nominee giving you the right to vote the shares.

Even if you currently plan to attend the Annual Meeting, we recommend that you also return your proxy or voting instructions as described above so that your votes will be counted if you later decide not to attend the Annual Meeting or are unable to attend.

#### Proposal 1:

When you cast your vote on Proposal 1, you may vote for all director nominees or you may withhold your vote as to one or more director nominees.

#### Proposal 2:

When you cast your vote on Proposal 2, you may vote for the proposal, vote against the proposal or abstain from voting on the proposal.

#### What are the Board's recommendations on how I should vote my shares?

The Board recommends that you vote your shares 'FOR" Proposal 1 and "FOR" Proposal 2.

#### What if I do not specify how I want my shares voted?

If you are a record holder who returns a completed proxy that does not specify how you want to vote your shares on one or more proposals, the proxy will vote your shares for each proposal as to which you provide no voting instructions, and such shares will be voted "FOR" Proposal 1 and "FOR" Proposal 2.

If you are a "street name" holder and do not provide voting instructions on one or more proposals, your bank, broker or other nominee will be unable to vote those shares with respect to Proposal 1 but will be able to vote those shares with respect to Proposal 2. See "What is a broker non-vote?"

#### Can I change my vote?

Yes. If you are a record holder, you may revoke your proxy at any time by any of the following means:

- Attending the Annual Meeting and voting at the Annual Meeting. Your attendance at the Annual Meeting will not by itself revoke a proxy. You must vote your shares
  by submitting your vote by accessing the voting link at the Annual Meeting to revoke your proxy.
- Completing and submitting a new valid proxy bearing a later date.
- Giving written notice of revocation to the Company addressed to Ian Rhodes, at the Company's address above, which notice must be received before 5:00 p.m., Eastern Time, on December 27, 2021.

If you are a "street name" holder, your bank, broker or other nominee should provide instructions explaining how you may change or revoke your voting instructions.

#### What votes are required to approve each proposal?

Assuming the presence of a quorum, with respect to Proposal 1, the affirmative vote of the holders of a plurality of the votes cast at the Annual Meeting is required for the election of the director nominees, i.e., the six director nominees who receive the most votes will be elected. Assuming the presence of a quorum, approval of Proposal 2 will require the affirmative vote of a majority of the votes cast for or against the proposal.

#### How are abstentions and broker non-votes treated?

Any stockholder who is present at the Annual Meeting, either in person or by proxy, who abstains from voting, will still be counted for purposes of determining whether a quorum exists for the meeting. If you hold your shares in "street name" and you do not instruct your bank, broker or other nominee how to vote, your shares will be included in the determination of the number of shares present at the Annual Meeting for determining a quorum at the meeting but may constitute broker non-votes, resulting in no votes being cast on your behalf with respect to certain proposals. See "What is a broker non-vote?"

5

An abstention or failure to instruct your broker how to vote with respect to Proposal 1 will not be counted as an affirmative or negative vote in the election of directors and will have no effect on the outcome of the vote with respect to Proposal 1. An abstention or broker non-vote with respect to Proposal 2 will likewise not be counted as an affirmative or negative vote against the proposal and will have no effect on the outcome of the vote on such proposals. Failure to instruct your broker how to vote with respect to Proposal 1 will have no effect on the outcome of the vote because broker non-votes are not considered shares entitled to vote. However, if you do not give your broker specific instructions on how to vote your shares with respect to Proposal 2, your broker may vote your shares at its discretion.

#### Do I have any dissenters' or appraisal rights with respect to any of the matters to be voted on at the Annual Meeting?

No. None of our stockholders has any dissenters' or appraisal rights with respect to the matters to be voted on at the Annual Meeting.

#### What are the solicitation expenses and who pays the cost of this proxy solicitation?

Our Board is asking for your proxy and we will pay all of the costs of asking for stockholder proxies. We will reimburse brokerage houses and other custodians, nominees and fiduciaries for their reasonable out-of-pocket expenses for forwarding solicitation material to the beneficial owners of common stock and collecting voting instructions. We may use officers and employees of the Company to ask for proxies, as described below. In addition, we have retained Advantage Proxy, Inc. ("Advantage") to assist in the solicitation of proxies for a fee of \$10,000 plus customary expenses.

#### Is this Proxy Statement the only way that proxies are being solicited?

No. In addition to the solicitation of proxies by use of the mail, officers and employees of the Company, as well as Advantage, the proxy solicitation firm hired by the Company, may solicit the return of proxies, either by mail, telephone, telecopy, e-mail or through personal contact. These officers and employees will not receive additional compensation for their efforts but will be reimbursed for out-of-pocket expenses. The fees of Advantage as well as the reimbursement of expenses of Advantage will be borne by us. Brokerage houses and other custodians, nominees and fiduciaries, in connection with shares of the common stock registered in their names, will be requested to forward solicitation material to the beneficial owners of shares of common stock.

#### Are there any other matters to be acted upon at the Annual Meeting?

Management does not intend to present any business at the Annual Meeting for a vote other than the matters set forth in the Notice and has no information that others will do so. If other matters requiring a vote of the stockholders properly come before the Annual Meeting, it is the intention of the persons named in the form of proxy to vote the shares represented by the proxies held by them in accordance with applicable law and their judgment on such matters.

#### Where can I find voting results?

We expect to publish the voting results in a current report on Form 8-K, which we expect to file with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC") within four

business days after the Annual Meeting.

#### Who can help answer my questions?

The information provided above in this "Question and Answer" format is for your convenience only and is merely a summary of the information contained in this Proxy Statement. We urge you to carefully read this entire Proxy Statement, including the documents we refer to in this Proxy Statement. If you have any questions, or need additional materials, please feel free to contact the firm assisting us in the solicitation of proxies, Advantage. Banks and brokers and stockholders may call Advantage at 1-877-870-8565.

6

#### PROPOSAL 1: ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

#### **Nominees for Election**

The Board is currently comprised of six directors. Our Board, upon the recommendation of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee, has nominated the following six individuals to serve as directors (collectively, the "Company Nominees"):

Name	Age
Chris Chapman, M.D.	69
Craig Eagle, M.D.	53
Christopher C. Schreiber	57
Joshua Silverman	52
Jude Uzonwanne	47
Bill J. White	61

Our board has fixed the size of the Board to be seven directors. Currently there is a vacancy created upon the passing of Robert C. Schroeder on September 1, 2021. As of November 22, 2021, our board has not nominated anyone to fill the vacancy.

If elected, respectively, these nominees will serve until our 2022 annual meeting of stockholders or until their successors are elected and qualified or until their earlier incapacity, removal or resignation. Our Board believes that all of our current directors, who are the six nominees for election, possess personal and professional integrity, good judgment, a high level of ability and business acumen.

If a quorum is present, the Company Nominees will be elected by a plurality of the votes cast at the Annual Meeting. Abstentions and broker non-votes have no effect on the vote. The six Company Nominees receiving the highest number of affirmative votes will be elected directors of the Company. Shares of voting stock represented by executed proxies will be voted, if authority to do so is not withheld, for the election of the six nominees named above. Should any Company Nominee become unable or unwilling to accept nomination or election, the proxy holders may vote the proxies for the election, in his or her stead, of any other person the Board may nominate or designate. Each Company Nominee has agreed to serve, if elected, and the Board has no reason to believe that any Company Nominee will be unable to serve.

The biographies of the Company Nominees are as follows:

Chris Chapman, M.D., has been our director since April 16, 2021 and currently serves as our President and Chief Medical Officer. Dr. Chapman previously served as President and Chief Medical Officer of MyMD Pharmaceuticals (Florida), Inc., a Florida corporation previously known as MyMD Pharmaceuticals, Inc. ("MyMD Florida") effective as of November 1, 2020. Prior to joining MYMD Florida and since 1999, Dr. Chapman has also served as the Chief Executive Officer of Chapman Pharmaceutical Consulting, Inc., a consulting organization that provides support to pharmaceutical and biotech companies in North America, Europe, Japan, India and Africa on issues such as product safety, pharmacovigilance, medical devices, clinical trials and regulatory issues. In addition, from 2003-2004, Dr. Chapman served as the Associate Director of Drug Safety, Pharmacovigilance, and Clinical Operations for Organon Pharmaceuticals, where he was responsible for the supervision of four fellow M.D.s and 10 drug safety specialists. Prior to his time at Organon, Dr. Chapman served as Director, Medical Affairs, Drug Safety and Medical Writing Departments at Quintiles (currently known as IQVIA), from 1995-2003, where he grew the division from no employees to forty employees, including eight board certified physicians, four RNs, two pharmacists, eight medical writers and supporting staff. Dr. Chapman has also served on the board of directors of Rock Creek Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (f/k/a Star Scientific, Inc.) from 2007-2016, including as a member of the Audit Committee from 2007-2014, chairperson of the Compensation Committee from 2007-2014, and chairperson of the Executive Search Committee from 2007 to 2014. Dr. Chapman is an experienced executive and global medical expert and has extensive experience in providing monitoring and oversight for ongoing clinical trials including both adult and pediatric subjects. Dr. Chapman is also the founder of the Chapman Pharmaceutical Health Foundation, an IRS Section 501(c)(3) nonprofit organization established to solicit public funds and to support healthcare needs such as AIDS, diabetes, hypertension, lupus, sickle cell anemia, malaria and tuberculosis, which was organized in 2006. Dr. Chapman is a graduate of the Harvard Kennedy School of Cambridge, Massachusetts for financial management in 2020. Dr. Chapman received his M.D. degree from Georgetown University in Washington, D.C. in 1987, and completed his internship in Internal Medicine, a residency in Anesthesiology and a fellowship in Cardiovascular and Obstetric Anesthesiology at Georgetown.

7

Craig Eagle, M.D. has been our director since April 16, 2021. Dr. Eagle is currently the Vice President of Oncology for Genentech, a position he has held since 2019, where he oversees the medical programs across Genentech's oncology portfolio. Prior to his current role, Dr. Eagle worked in several positions at Pfizer from 2009 to 2019, including as the oncology business lead in the United Kingdom and Canada, the global lead for Oncology Strategic Alliances and Partnerships based in New York, and as the head of the Oncology Therapeutic Area Global Medical and Outcomes Group, including the U.S. oncology medical business. Through his multiple roles at Pfizer, Dr. Eagle delivered significant business growth and was involved in multiple strategic acquisitions and divestitures. In addition, while at Pfizer, Dr. Eagle oversaw extensive oncology clinical trial programs, multiple regulatory and payer approvals across Pfizer's oncology portfolio, health outcomes assessments and scientific collaborations with key global research organizations like the National Cancer Institute (NCI), and the European Organisation for Research and Treatment of Cancer (EORTC), and led worldwide development of several compounds including celecoxib, aromasin, irinotecan, dalteparin and ozagomicin. Dr. Eagle has served as a member of the Scientific Advisory Board at Generex Biotechnology Corporation (OTCQB: GNBT), a publicly-traded integrated healthcare holding company, since August 2010 and as a member of the company's board of directors since 2017, and also currently serves as a member of the board of directors and chair of the Science and Policy Committee of Pierian Biosciences, a privately held life sciences company. Dr. Eagle attended Medical School at the University of New South Wales, Sydney, Australia and received his general internist training at Royal North Shore Hospital in Sydney. He completed his hemato-oncology and laboratory hematology training at Royal Prince Alfred Hospital in Sydney and was granted Fellowship in the Royal Australasian College of Physicians (FRACP) and the Royal College of Pathologists Australasia (FRCPA). After his training, Dr. Eagle performed basic research at the Royal Prince of Wales hospital to develop a new monoclonal antibody to inhibit platelets before moving into the pharmaceutical industry. Dr. Eagle's qualifications to sit on the board of directors of the combined company include his long and successful career in the international pharmaceutical industry, his senior executive experience in areas such as business growth, strategic alliances and mergers and acquisition transactions, his experience as a member of both public and private company boards in the healthcare and life science industries, and his wealth of oncology experience, including leading and participating in scientific research, regulatory, pricing & re-imbursement negotiations for compounds in therapeutic areas.

Christopher C. Schreiber has been our director since August 8, 2017 and he previously at various times as our Chief Executive Officer, President, and Executive Chairman of the Board. Mr. Schreiber combines over 30 years of experience in the securities industry. As the managing director of capital markets at Taglich Brothers, Inc., Mr.

Schreiber builds upon his extensive background in capital markets, deal structures, and syndications. Prior to his time at Taglich Brothers, Inc., he was a member of the board of directors of Paulson Investment Company, a 40-year-old full service investment banking firm. In addition, Mr. Schreiber serves as a director and partner of Long Island Express North, an elite lacrosse training organization for teams and individuals. He also volunteers on the board of directors for Fox Lane Youth Lacrosse, a community youth program. Mr. Schreiber is a graduate of Johns Hopkins University, where he received a Bachelor's Degree in Political Science.

Joshua Silverman has been our director since September 6, 2018 and currently serves as Chairman of the Board. Prior to the completion of the Merger, Mr. Silverman was also the lead independent director. Mr. Silverman currently serves as the managing member of Parkfield Funding LLC. Mr. Silverman was the co-founder, and a principal and managing partner of Iroquois Capital Management, LLC ("Iroquois"), an investment advisory firm. Since its inception in 2003 until July 2016, Mr. Silverman served as cochief investment officer of Iroquois. While at Iroquois, he designed and executed complex transactions, structuring and negotiating investments in both public and private companies and has often been called upon by the companies solve inefficiencies as they relate to corporate structure, cash flow, and management. From 2000 to 2003, Mr. Silverman served as co-chief investment officer of Vertical Ventures, LLC, a merchant bank. Prior to forming Iroquois, Mr. Silverman was a director of Joele Frank, a boutique consulting firm specializing in mergers and acquisitions. Previously, Mr. Silverman served as assistant press secretary to the president of the United States. Mr. Silverman currently serves as a director of Ayro Inc., Protagenic Therapeutics, and Neurotrope, Inc., all of which are public companies. He previously served as a director of National Holdings Corporation from July 2014 through August 2016 and as a director of Marker Therapeutics, Inc. from August 2016 until October 2018. Mr. Silverman received his B.A. from Lehigh University in 1992.

8

Jude Uzonwanne has been our director since April 16, 2021. Mr. Uzonwanne is currently a Principal with ZS Associates, Inc., a consulting and professional services firm focusing on consulting, software and technology that provides services for clients in the private equity, healthcare, and technology industries, a position he has held since January 2021. Prior to joining ZS Associates, Mr. Uzonwanne was a Principal at IQVIA, Inc. from 2018 to 2020, where he served as the head of the firm's US Financial Investors Consulting practice and as management consulting lead for IQVIA's service to a top-6 global pharmaceutical company and select emerging biopharmaceutical companies. Prior to joining IQVIA, Mr. Uzonwanne served as Vice President (Associate Partner) at EY-Parthenon LLP from 2016 to 2018, where he managed teams advising corporate and private equity investors on a range of commercial due diligence targets in healthcare strategies and advised clients on growth accelerating strategies and investments, Principal (Associate Partner) at Bain & Company from 2015 to 2016, where he led cross-border teams advising corporate, private equity and government clients on their Africa growth strategies, Associate Partner at Dalberg Global Development Advisers in 2015, where he managed project teams advising a range of PE and corporate clients on healthcare investments and M&A strategy in emerging markets and the United States, and Deputy Director, Strategy, of the Bill and Melinda Gates Foundation, where he led the Foundation's Africa strategy team advising its C-level and trustee leadership and program teams on winning in its core Africa market. Since 2019, Mr. Uzonwanne has served as a member of the board of directors of Bonita Foods, a privately held emerging market specialty food and snacks company. Mr. Uzonwanne is a graduate of Swarthmore College (double Honors B.A in Economics and Political Science). Mr. Uzonwanne's qualifications to sit on the board of directors of the combined company include his experience as a corporate strategy and transaction services adviser in the healthcare and industrials sector, including extensive experience in life sciences across oncology, rare and specialty diseases, and broad therapeutic areas including central nervous system, reproductive health, cardiology, diabetes and kidney diseases, his understanding of complex commercial and mergers and acquisitions transactions, and his experience working with emerging biotech and traditional pharmaceutical clients in key global life sciences markets including the US, China, EU5, UK and multiple emerging markets.

Bill J. White has been our director since August 8, 2017. Mr. White has more than 30 years of experience in financial management, operations and business development. He currently serves as chief financial officer, treasurer and secretary of Intellicheck, Inc., a technology company listed on the NYSE MKT. Prior to working at Intellicheck, Inc., he served 11 years as the chief financial officer, secretary and treasurer of FocusMicro, Inc. ("FM"). As co-founder of FM, Mr. White played an integral role in growing the business from the company's inception to over \$36 million in annual revenue in a five-year period. Mr. White has broad domestic and international experience including managing rapid and significant growth, import/export, implementing tough cost management initiatives, exploiting new growth opportunities, merger and acquisitions, strategic planning, resource allocation, tax compliance and organization development. Prior to co-founding FM, he served 15 years in various financial leadership positions in the government sector. Mr. White started his career in Public Accounting. Mr. White has more than 30 years of experience enternal management, operations and business and business and business and business and business Administration from Washington State University and is a Certified Fraud Examiner. Mr. White was selected to serve on the Board of Directors in part because of his significant financial and accounting experience with public companies.

### Family Relationships

There are no family relationships between any of our officers or directors.

#### **Required Vote and Board Recommendation**

If a quorum is present and voting, the six Company Nominees receiving the highest number of votes will be elected as directors. If you hold your shares in your own name and abstain from voting on the election of directors, your abstention will have no effect on the vote. If you hold your shares through a broker and you do not instruct the broker on how to vote for the six Company Nominees, your broker will not have the authority to vote your shares. Abstentions and broker non-votes will each be counted as present for purposes of determining the presence of a quorum but will not have any effect on the outcome of the vote.

#### The Board recommends that you vote "FOR" each Company Nominee.

g

#### CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

MyMD, with the oversight of the Board and its committees, operates within a comprehensive plan of corporate governance for the purpose of defining independence, assigning responsibilities, setting high standards of professional and personal conduct and assuring compliance with such responsibilities and standards. We regularly monitor developments in the area of corporate governance.

#### **Corporate Governance Reforms**

On May 28, 2020, the United States District Court for the District of New Jersey approved that certain Amended Stipulation and Agreement of Settlement, dated October 1, 2019 (the "Settlement") among the settling parties in connection with a consolidated shareholder derivative action, Case No.: 2:18-cv-15992. Pursuant to the Settlement, effective as of July 21, 2020, we made various modifications to our corporate governance and business ethics practices as further discussed below.

#### Code of Business Ethics and Conduct and Whistleblower Policy

We have adopted a Code of Business Ethics and Conduct, which applies to our Board, our executive officers and our employees, outlines the broad principles of ethical business conduct we adopted, covering subject areas such as, compliance with applicable laws and regulations, handling of books and records, public disclosure reporting, insider trading, conflicts of interest, competition and fair dealing, and other violations. Our Code of Business Ethics and Conduct is available on our website at <a href="https://www.mymd.com">www.mymd.com</a> in the "Corporate Governance" section found under the "Investors" tab. Pursuant to the Settlement, we will conduct a review of our Code of Business Ethics and Conduct on an annual basis and to monitor compliance. We intend to disclose any amendments to, or waivers from, our Code of Business Ethics and Conduct at the same website address provided above.

In addition, pursuant to the Settlement, we adopted a Whistleblower Policy to encourage employees, officers and directors to bring forward ethical and legal violations. We have disclosed a copy of the Whistleblower Policy and intend to disclose any amendments to the Whistleblower Policy at the same website address provided above.

Pursuant to the Settlement, we formed a Risk and Disclosure Committee, which is served by the members of the Audit Committee, which reviews our ethics and risk program and internal controls over compliance and identifies and recommends to the Board any changes that it deemed necessary. The Risk and Disclosure Committee also monitors compliance with our Code of Business Ethics and Conduct, reviews and evaluates our public disclosures and disclosure controls and procedures and handle any whistleblower complaints.

#### **Board Composition and Committees**

Our Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation, as amended (the "Charter"), and our Amended and Restated Bylaws ("Bylaws") provide that our Board will consist a number of directors to be determined from time to time solely by resolution of the Board of Directors, which is currently set at seven directors. Vacancies or newly created directorships resulting from an increase in the authorized number of directors elected by all of the stockholders having the right to vote as a single class may be filled by a majority of the directors then in office, although less than a quorum, or by a sole remaining director.

We have no formal policy regarding Board diversity. Our Board believes that each director should have a basic understanding of the principal operational and financial objectives and plans and strategies of the Company, our results of operations and financial condition and relative standing in relation to our competitors. We take into consideration the overall composition and diversity of the Board and areas of expertise that director nominees may be able to offer, including business experience, knowledge, abilities and customer relationships. Generally, we will strive to assemble a Board that brings to us a variety of perspectives and skills derived from business and professional experience as we may deem are in our and our stockholders' best interests. In doing so, we will also consider candidates with appropriate non-business backgrounds.

10

#### **Director Independence**

We are currently listed on the Nasdaq Capital Market and therefore rely on the definition of independence set forth in the Nasdaq Listing Rules ("Nasdaq Rules"). Under the Nasdaq Rules, a director will only qualify as an "independent director" if, in the opinion of our Board, that person does not have a relationship that would interfere with the exercise of independent judgment in carrying out the responsibilities of a director. Based upon information requested from and provided by each director concerning his background, employment, share ownership, and affiliations with other board members, shareholders, business, contractor and family relationships, as well as the amount of the compensation we pay to each director, we have determined that Mr. Silverman, Mr. White, Dr. Eagle, and Mr. Uzonwanne have no material relationships with us that would interfere with the exercise of independent judgment and are "independent directors" as that term is defined in the Nasdaq Listing Rules.

Pursuant to the Settlement, we also adopted amendments to our Bylaws to require that at least 50% of the Board will qualify as "independent directors" under the Nasdaq Rules and that the Chairman of the Board will be an independent director. Currently, more than 50% of the Board qualify as "independent directors" under the Nasdaq Rules.

#### **Board Committees, Meetings and Attendance**

During 2020, the Board met in person and telephonically 8 times and also acted by unanimous written consent. We expect our directors to attend Board meetings, meetings of any committees and subcommittees on which they serve, and each annual meeting of stockholders, either in person or by teleconference. During 2020, each director attended at least seventy-five percent (75%) of the total number of meetings held by the Board and Board committees of which such director was a member. All four of the directors then in office attended our 2020 annual meeting of stockholders. Pursuant to the Settlement, we adopted amendments to our Bylaws to require at least until July 21, 2024 (i) attendance of each member of the Board at our annual meeting of shareholders in person, absent extraordinary circumstances and (ii) no less than four (4) executive session per year among independent directors following each Board meeting.

The Board delegates various responsibilities and authority to different Board committees. Committees regularly report on their activities and actions to the full Board. Currently, the Board has established an Audit Committee, a Compensation Committee, a Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee and a Risk and Disclosure Committee. Committee assignments are re-evaluated annually. Each of these committees operates under a charter that has been approved by our Board. The current charter of each of these committees is available on our website at <a href="https://www.mymd.com">www.mymd.com</a> in the "Corporate Governance" section under "Investors." Pursuant to the Settlement, we adopted several amendments to the committee charters. We disclosed these amendments and intend to disclose any future amendments to the charters of these committees at the same website address provided above.

As of November 12, 2021, the following table sets forth the membership of each of the Board committees listed above.

			Nomination	
			Corporate	Risk and
	Audit	Compensation	Governance	Disclosure
Name	Committee	Committee	Committee	Committee
Chris Chapman, M.D.				
Craig Eagle, M.D.		Member		
Christopher C. Schreiber				
Joshua Silverman	Member	Chair	Member	Member
Jude Uzonwanne	Member	Member	Chair	Member
Bill J. White	Chair		Member	Chair

Audit Committee

Our Audit Committee is responsible for, among other matters:

- monitoring the integrity of our financial reporting process, including critical accounting policies and estimates, and systems of internal controls regarding finance, accounting, legal and regulatory compliance;
- monitoring the independence and performance of our independent auditors and our accounting personnel;

11

- providing an avenue of communication among the independent auditors, management, our accounting personnel, and the Board;
- appointing and providing oversight for the independent auditors engaged to perform the audit of the financial statements;
- discussing the scope of the independent auditors' examination;
- reviewing the financial statements and the independent auditors' report;
- reviewing areas of potential significant financial risk and exposure to us, to the extent that there are any, and assess the steps management has taken to monitor such risks;

- monitoring compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
- soliciting recommendations from the independent auditors regarding internal controls and other matters;
- making recommendations to the Board:
- resolving any disagreements between management and the auditors regarding financial reporting;
- preparing the report required by Item 407(d) of Regulation S-K, as required by the rules of the SEC;
- reviewing issues regarding accounting principles and financial statement presentation (including any significant changes in our selection or application of accounting principles); and
- reviewing the effectiveness of any special accounting steps adopted in light of identified significant and/or material control deficiencies.

Our Audit Committee is composed of Bill J. White (Chair), Joshua Silverman, and Jude Uzonwanne. Our Board has determined that each of the current members of the Audit Committee is independent in accordance with Nasdaq Rules and Rule 10A-3 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act"). Our Board has also reviewed the education, experience and other qualifications of each member of the Audit Committee. Based upon that review, our Board has determined that Mr. White qualifies as an "audit committee financial expert," as defined by the rules of the SEC. The Audit Committee met 4 times during 2020.

#### Compensation Committee

Our Compensation Committee is responsible for, among other matters:

- reviewing on an annual basis goals and objectives relevant to our Chief Executive Officer's compensation, evaluating our Chief Executive Officer's performance in light
  of those goals and objectives, and determining and recommending such goals, objectives and compensation of our Chief Executive Officer's to the Board for its
  approval;
- reviewing and approving on an annual basis the compensation of our executive officers other than our Chief Executive Officer;
- reviewing and recommending on an annual basis to the Board for its approval, the fees and equity compensation paid to the Company's non-employee directors;
- retaining and terminating any compensation consultant to be used by the Compensation Committee or us to assist in the evaluation of the compensation of non-employee directors, the CEO or the other executive officers and approving such compensation consultant's fees and other retention terms, and overseeing the work of such compensation consultant:
- reviewing and making recommendations to the Board with respect to incentive-compensation programs and equity-based plans and the adoption of or material changes in material employee benefit, bonus, severance and other compensation plans;
- determining the need for and the appropriateness of employment agreements and change in control agreements for each of our executive officers and any other officers recommended by the Chief Executive Officer or the Board.
- determining and approving the options and other equity-based compensation to be granted to executive officers, other than the Chief Executive Officer;
- recommending to the Board for approval options and other equity-based compensation to be granted to the Chief Executive Officer and non-employee directors; and
- in conjunction with the CEO, determining the issuance of options and other equity-based compensation under the Company's incentive compensation and other stock-based plans to all other officers and employees.

12

Our Compensation Committee is composed of Joshua Silverman (Chair), Craig Eagle, M.D., and Jude Uzonwanne. Our Board has determined that each of the current members of the Compensation Committee is independent in accordance with Nasdaq Rules. The Compensation Committee may delegate the determination with respect to persons other than officers to the Chief Executive Officer but will approve the aggregate amount granted to all employees and all new hire grants. The Compensation Committee met 3 times during 2020. We did not engage any consultants in determining or recommending the amount or form of executive and director compensation during 2020.

Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee

Our Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee is responsible for, among other matters:

- overseeing the administration of our Code of Business Ethics and Conduct and related policies;
- leading the search for and recommending individuals qualified to become members of the Board, and selecting director nominees to be presented for election by the shareholders at each annual meeting;
- ensuring, in cooperation with the Compensation Committee, that no agreements or arrangements are made with directors or relatives of directors for providing
  professional or consulting services to us or our affiliate or individual officer or one of their affiliated, without appropriate review and evaluation for conflicts of interest;
- ensuring that Board members do not serve on more than six other for-profit public company boards that have a class of securities registered under the Exchange Act in addition to the Board;
- reviewing the Board's committee structure and to recommend to the Board for its approval;
- reviewing recommendations received from shareholders for persons to be considered for nomination to the Board;
- monitoring compliance with our corporate governance guidelines;
- developing and implementing an annual self-evaluation of the Board, both individually and as a Board, and of its committees;
- reviewing and recommending changes to procedures whereby shareholders may communicate with the Board;
- assessing the independence of directors annually and report to the Board;
- recommending to the Board for its approval, the leadership structure of the Board, including whether the Board should have an executive or non-executive Chairman, whether the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer should combine, and whether a Lead Director of the Board should be appointed; provided that such structure shall be subject to the bylaws of the Company then in effect.

Our Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee is composed of Jude Uzonwanne (Chair), Bill J. White, and Joshua Silverman. Each of the current appointed Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee members is "independent" within the meaning of the Nasdaq Stock Market Rules. The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee met 1 time during 2020.

The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee evaluates each director on an annual basis in accordance with the Company's Director Evaluation Policy, which was implemented pursuant to the Settlement. The policy calls for each director to fill out a Skills Matrix form identifying relevant skills that her or she possesses, along with a brief explanation of the basis for each skill claimed. The director is then interviewed by a member of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee in order to discuss:

- the director's strengths and contributions to the Board;
- any gaps in the director's skills an performance;
- the director's thoughts of the Board's performance over the past year; and
- the evaluator's recommendations for how the director can improve.

The evaluator then fills out a Director Evaluation Scorecard based on the interview, and the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee reviews the Director Evaluation Scorecards along with the Skills Matrices and reports its findings to the Board. The Director Evaluation Policy, as well as the most recent Skills Matrix and the Scorecard form, are available on our website at <a href="https://www.mymd.com">www.mymd.com</a> in the "About Us" section under "Team." Based on the latest evaluation, the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee did not identify any issues that merited reporting to or action by the Board.

Risk and Disclosure Committee

Our Risk and Disclosure Committee is responsible for, among other matters:

- reviewing the effectiveness of our Code of Ethics annually, including our ethics and risk program, and recommending to the Board any changes to our policies and internal controls as necessary;
- monitoring compliance with our Code of Ethics, and specifically reviewing and evaluating our public disclosures and annually reviewing and evaluating our disclosure controls and procedures;
- reviewing and approving any waivers of provisions of the Code of Ethics;
- addressing any whistleblower complaints and ensuring that all whistleblower complaints are appropriately reviewed by the Risk and Disclosure Committee and that
  any appropriate remedial action if necessary is taken based on the results of its review; and
- ensuring that non-retaliation policies are instituted and strictly complied with in order to protect any Company employee who reports a whistleblower complaint.

Our Risk and Disclosure Committee is composed of Bill J. White (Chair), Joshua Silverman and Jude Uzonwanne. Our Board has determined that each of the current members of the Risk and Disclosure Committee is independent in accordance with Nasdaq Rules. The Risk and Disclosure Committee met 4 times during 2020.

#### **Director Nominations**

Our Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee considers all qualified candidates identified by members of the Board, by senior management and by stockholders. The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee follows the same process and uses the same criteria for evaluating candidates proposed by stockholders, members of the Board and members of senior management. We did not pay fees to any third party to assist in the process of identifying or evaluating director candidates during 2020.

Our Charter and Bylaws contain provisions that address the process by which a stockholder may nominate an individual to stand for election to the Board at our Annual Meeting. Any stockholder recommendations for consideration by the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee should include the candidate's name, biographical information, information regarding any relationships between the candidate and the Company within the last three years, a description of all arrangements between the candidate and the recommending stockholder and any other person pursuant to which the candidate is being recommended, a written indication of the candidate's willingness to serve on the Board, any other information required to be provided under securities laws and regulations, and a written indication to provide such other information as the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee may reasonably request. Stockholder recommendations to the Board should be sent to:

MyMD Pharmaceuticals, Inc. 855 N. Wolfe Street, Suite 623 Baltimore, MD 21205 Attention: General Counsel

14

Such nomination must satisfy the notice, information and consent requirements set forth in our Charter and Bylaws and must be received by us prior to the date set forth under "Submission of Future Stockholder Proposals" below.

In evaluating director nominees, the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee considers the following factors:

- the appropriate size and diversity of our Board;
- our needs with respect to the particular knowledge, skills and experience of nominees, including experience in corporate finance, technology, business, administration and sales, in light of the prevailing business conditions and the knowledge, skills and experience already possessed by other members of the Board;
- experience with accounting rules and practices, and whether such a person qualifies as an "audit committee financial expert" pursuant to SEC rules; and
- balancing continuity of our Board with periodic injection of fresh perspectives provided by new Board members.

Our Board believes that each director should have a basic understanding of our principal operational and financial objectives and plans and strategies, our results of operations and financial condition and our relative standing in relation to our competitors.

In identifying director nominees, the Board will first evaluate the current members of the Board willing to continue in service. Current members of the Board with skills and experience that are relevant to our business and who are willing to continue in service will be considered for re-nomination.

If any member of the Board does not wish to continue in service or if the Board decides not to re-nominate a member for re-election, the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee will seek to identify new candidates for the Board. The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee shall then initially evaluate a prospective nominee on the basis of his or her resume and other background information that has been made available to the committee. A member of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee will contact for further review those candidates who the committee believes are qualified, who may fulfill a specific board need and who would otherwise best make a contribution to the Board. If, after further discussions with the candidate, and other further review and consideration as necessary, the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee believes that it has identified a qualified candidate, it will make a recommendation to the Board.

#### **Board Leadership Structure and Role in Risk Oversight**

Our Board currently consists of six directors with Josh Silverman serving as the Chairman of the Board.

Our Audit Committee has primarily been responsible for overseeing the Company's risk management processes on behalf of the full Board. The Audit Committee receives reports from management concerning the Company's assessment of risks. In addition, the Audit Committee reports regularly to the full Board, which also considers the Company's risk profile. The Audit Committee and the full Board focus on the most significant risks facing the Company and the Company's general risk management strategy. In addition, as part of its oversight of our Company's executive compensation program, the Compensation Committee considers the impact of such program, and the incentives created by the compensation awards that it administers, on our Company's risk profile. In addition, the Compensation Committee reviews all of our compensation policies and

Pursuant to the Settlement, we adopted amendments to our Bylaws to separate the roles of Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer prior to November 28, 2020. The Settlement required that by November 28, 2020, our Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer positions be occupied by different individuals, and that the Chairman of the Board will be held by an independent director. Furthermore, the role of the Chairman of the Board will be rotated among the independent directors every five 5 years.

We also established a Risk and Disclosure Committee, which is primarily responsible for overseeing the Company's ethics and risk program and internal controls over compliance. In addition, the Risk and Disclosure Committee reports to the full Board, which also considers the Company's risk profile.

We are continuing to review our established controls and procedures that involve cybersecurity matters to determine any other material impacts to our financial results, operations, and/or reputation to insure such incidents are immediately reported by management to the Board of Directors, or individual members or committees thereof, as appropriate, in accordance with our escalation framework and insure we have established procedures to ensure that management responsible for overseeing the effectiveness of disclosure controls is informed in a timely manner of known cybersecurity risks and incidents that may materially impact our operations and that timely public disclosure is made as appropriate.

#### **Communications with Directors**

Stockholders and other interested parties may send correspondence by mail to the full Board or to individual directors. Stockholders should address such correspondence to the Board or the relevant Board members in care of: MyMD Pharmaceuticals, Inc., 855 N. Wolfe Street, Suite 623, Baltimore, MD 21205, Attention: General Counsel.

All such correspondence will be compiled by our General Counsel and forwarded as appropriate. In general, correspondence relating to corporate governance issues, long-term corporate strategy or similar substantive matters will be forwarded to the Board, one of the committees of the Board, or a member thereof for review. Correspondence relating to the ordinary course of business affairs, personal grievances, and matters as to which we tend to receive repetitive or duplicative communications are usually more appropriately addressed by the officers or their designees and will be forwarded to such persons accordingly. If the amount of correspondence received through the foregoing process becomes excessive, our Board may consider approving a process for review, organization and screening of the correspondence by our General Counsel or another appropriate person.

#### **Involvement in Certain Legal Proceedings**

There have been no material legal proceedings that would require disclosure under the federal securities laws that are material to an evaluation of the ability or integrity of our directors or executive officers, or in which any director, officer, nominee or principal stockholder, or any affiliate thereof, is a party adverse to us or has a material interest adverse to us.

16

#### DIRECTOR COMPENSATION

The following table presents the total compensation for each person who served as a member of our Board during 2020. All compensation paid to Mr. Schreiber during 2020 is reported under the Summary Compensation Table. Other than as set forth in the table and described more fully below, we did not pay any compensation, reimburse any expense of, make any equity awards or non-equity awards to, or pay any other compensation to any of the other members of our Board in such period.

Effective as of 4:05 pm Eastern Time on April 16, 2021, we filed an amendment to our Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation to effect a reverse stock split of the issued and outstanding shares of our common stock, at a ratio of one share for two shares. The stock awards listed below have been adjusted to give effect to the Reverse Split.

Director Compensation Table

Fees earned or paid in Name cash (\$) Stock Awards (\$) (1) Total (\$) 176,000 Josh Silverman (2) 490 560(5) 666 560 Bill J. White (3) 96,000 490,560(5) 586,560 Robert Schroeder (4) 196,806(5) 292,806

- (1) In accordance with SEC rules, this column reflects the aggregate fair value of stock awards granted during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2020, computed as of their respective grant dates in accordance with Financial Accounting Standard Board Accounting Standards Codification Topic 718 for share-based compensation transactions.
- (2) On November 20, 2020, Mr. Silverman was appointed as Chairman of the Board. As of December 31, 2020, Mr. Silverman had 109,500 outstanding RSUs.
- (3) As of December 31, 2020, Mr. White had 109,500 outstanding RSUs.
- (4) As of December 31, 2020, Mr. Schroeder had 43,930 outstanding RSUs.
- (5) On September 11, 2020, we granted each director restricted stock units to purchase shares of the Company's common stock, as follows: each of Mr. Silverman and Mr. White were granted 109,500 RSUs and Mr. Schroeder was granted 43,930 RSUs. On April 16, 2021, concurrently with the closing of the Merger, pursuant to the terms of the RSU Agreements between the Company and the four directors listed above, the 394,680 RSUs granted on September 11, 2020 under the 2018 Plan, as amended, that remained unvested accelerated and vested in full. On March 29, 2019, we granted each directors RSUs to purchase 2,601 shares of our commons stock, which vested in full on January 1, 2020.

Narrative Disclosure to Director Compensation Table

As approved by the Compensation Committee of the Board on March 29, 2019, beginning in April 2019, each serving director who is not also holding a position as an executive officer is paid \$8,000 per month. On or around May 2020, the Compensation Committee of the Board approved payments to Mr. Silverman of \$18,000 per month, beginning in May 2020. All director fees were paid on a monthly basis. There was no other compensation for directors during the year ended December 31, 2020.

On September 11, 2020, the Compensation Committee of the Board approved the grant of 131,750 RSUs to Mr. Schreiber, 109,500 RSUs to each of Mr. Silverman and Mr. White; and 43,930 RSUs to Mr. Schreeder. Each RSU had a grant date fair value of \$4.48 which shall be amortized on a straight-line basis over the vesting period into administrative expenses within our Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Loss. Such RSUs were granted under the 2018 Plan, with 50% to vest on the first anniversary of the date of grant, and the remaining 50% to vest on the second anniversary of the date of grant, provided that the RSUs shall vest immediately upon the occurrence of (i) a change in control, provided that the grantee is employed or providing services to us and our affiliates on the closing date of such change in control, (ii) the grantee's termination

of employment or services to us and our affiliates by reason of death or disability, or (iii) the grantee's termination of employment or services to us without cause. At our election, the vested RSUs may be settled for cash. On April 16, 2021, concurrently with the closing of the Merger, pursuant to the terms of the RSU Agreements between the Company and the four directors listed above, the 394,680 RSUs granted on September 11, 2020 under the 2018 Plan, as amended, that remained unvested accelerated and vested in full.

On November 23, 2020, we retained Taglich Brothers on a non-exclusive basis as a consultant to render consulting services, assist with review, and analysis of, financial planning and budgeting matters of the Company for a term of 12 months. Pursuant to the Consulting Agreement with Taglich Brothers, we agreed to pay Taglich Brothers \$10,000 per month.

Mr. Schreiber is the managing director of capital markets at Taglich Brothers, and Mr. Schroeder was the vice president of investment banking at Taglich Brothers.

On October 14, 2021, the Compensation Committee of the Board authorized the issuance of 2,795,000 restricted stock units with a fair market value of \$8.09 per RSU to the directors and key employees of the Company. These RSUs will vest in thirds when certain market capitalization milestones are met and maintained for twenty consecutive trading sessions. Upon achievement of a vesting milestone, the expenses related to the vested RSUs will be recorded at the fair market value of the Company's common stock on the date of vesting.

MyMD Florida Director Compensation

During 2019 and 2020 (and subsequent thereto until closing of the Merger), James A. McNulty, CPA and Jonnie R. Williams, Sr. were the only directors of MyMD Florida, and they received no compensation for their service as directors during such periods.

17

#### STOCK OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

The following table sets forth information regarding the beneficial ownership of our voting securities as of November 8, 2021 by (i) each person known to us to beneficially own five percent (5%) or more of any class of our voting securities; (ii) each of our named executive officers and directors; (iii) each of the named executive officers of MyMD Florida; and (iv) all of our directors and executive officers as a group. The percentages of voting securities beneficially owned are reported on the basis of regulations of the SEC governing the determination of beneficial ownership of securities. Under the rules of the SEC, a person is deemed to be a beneficial owner of a security if that person has or shares voting power, which includes the power to vote or to direct the voting of the security, or investment power, which includes the power to dispose of or to direct the disposition of the security. Except as indicated in the footnotes to this table, to our knowledge and subject to community property laws where applicable, each beneficial owner named in the table below has sole voting and sole investment power with respect to all shares beneficially owned and each person's address is c/o MyMD Pharmaceuticals, Inc., 855 N. Wolfe Street, Suite 623, Baltimore, MD 21205. Percentage of common stock ownership is based on 37,648,020 shares of common stock issued and outstanding as of November 8, 2021. Percentage of Series D Preferred Stock ownership is based on 72,992 shares of Series D Preferred Stock, the holder of Series D Preferred Stock is entitled to 36,496 votes on the proposals described in this Proxy Statement

Beneficial ownership is determined in accordance with the rules of the SEC. For the purpose of calculating the number of shares beneficially owned by a stockholder and the percentage ownership of that stockholder, shares of common stock subject to options or warrants that are currently exercisable or exercisable within sixty (60) days of November 8, 2021 by that stockholder are deemed outstanding.

	Number of Shares of Common Stock Beneficially Owned	Percentage Class	Number of Shares of Series D Preferred Stock	Percentage Class	
Name	(1)	(1) (2)	Beneficially Owned	(3)	<b>Total Voting Power</b>
5% Beneficial Owner					
The Starwood Trust <sup>(4)</sup>	2,548,703(5)	6.77%	_	_	6.77%
Iroquois Capital Management L.L.C. (6)	2,053,045(7)	5.45%	_	_	5.45%
Premas Biotech PVT Ltd. (8)	103,782(9)	*0/0	72,992	100.00%	*
Named Executive Officers and Directors					
Bill J. White	259,500(10)	*	_	_	*
Joshua Silverman	709,500(11)	1.88%	_	_	1.88%
Christopher C. Schreiber	281,750(12)	*	_	<u> </u>	*
Chris Chapman, M.D.	985,900(13)	2.62%	_	_	2.62%
Craig Eagle, M.D.	632,375(14)	1.68%	_	_	1.68%
Jude Uzonwanne	265,770(15)	*	_	_	*
Howard R. Yeaton <sup>(16)</sup>	938(17)	*	_	_	*
James A. McNulty, CPA <sup>(18)</sup>	1,651,653(19)	4.39%	_	_	4.39%
Adam Kaplin, M.D., Ph.D.	754,360(20)	2.00%	_	_	2.00%
All current executive officers and directors as a group (9 persons)	4,243,515	11.27%	_	_	11.27%

<sup>\*</sup> Less than 1%.

- 1) Shares of common stock beneficially owned and the respective percentages of beneficial ownership of common stock assume the exercise of all options and other securities convertible into common stock beneficially owned by such person or entity currently exercisable or exercisable within 60 days of November 8, 2021, except as otherwise noted. Shares issuable pursuant to the exercise of stock options and other securities convertible into common stock exercisable within 60 days are deemed outstanding and held by the holder of such options or other securities for computing the percentage of outstanding common stock beneficially owned by such person but are not deemed outstanding for computing the percentage of outstanding common stock beneficially owned by any other person.
- These percentages have been calculated based on 37,648,020 shares of common stock outstanding as of November 8, 2021.
- 3) These percentages have been calculated based on 72,992 shares of Series D Preferred Stock outstanding as of November 8, 2021.
- 4) As Trustee of The Starwood Trust, Caroline Williams has sole voting and dispositive power over the shares held by the Starwood Trust, and, as a result of the foregoing, is deemed to have beneficial ownership (as determined under Section 13(d) of the Exchange Act) of the securities held by The Starwood Trust.
- 5) Represents (i) 1,272,972 shares of common stock and (ii) 1,275,731 shares of common stock issuable upon the exercise of options exercisable within 60 days of the Record Date.

- This information is based on a Schedule 13G/A filed with the SEC on February 22, 2021 by Iroquois Capital Management, LLC ("Iroquois Capital") and on information available to the Company. The principal business office is 125 Park Avenue, 25th Floor, New York, NY 10017. Iroquois Capital is the investment advisor for Iroquois Master Fund, Ltd. ("IMF"). As directors of IMF, Kimberly Page and Richard Abbe make voting and investment decisions on behalf of IMF. As a result of the foregoing, Ms. Page and Mr. Abbe may be deemed to have beneficial ownership (as determined under Section 13(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended) of the securities held by Iroquois Capital and IMF.
- 7) Represents (i) 485,000 shares of common stock and (ii) 1,568,045 shares of common stock issuable upon the exercise of warrants exercisable within 60 days of the Record Date.
- 8) Prabuddha Kundu has sole voting and dispositive power over the securities held for this account.
- 9) Represents (i) 67,286 shares of common stock and (ii) 36,496 shares of common stock issuable upon conversion of Series D Preferred Stock.
- 10) Represents 259,500 restricted stock unit ("RSU") awards to Mr. White that are vested or scheduled to vest within 60 days of the Record Date.
- 11) Represents 709,500 RSU awards to Mr. Silverman that are vested or scheduled to vest within 60 days of the Record Date.
- 12) Represents 281,750 RSU awards to Mr. Schreiber that are vested or scheduled to vest within 60 days of the Record Date.
- Represents (i) 96,475 shares of common stock by Dr. Chapman, (ii) 289,425 shares of common stock issuable upon the exercise of options held exercisable within 60 days of the Record Date, and (iii) 600,000 RSU awards that are vested or scheduled to vest within 60 days of the Record Date.
- Represents (i) 482,375 shares of common stock issuable upon the exercise of options held by Dr. Eagle exercisable within 60 days of the Record Date and (ii) 150,000 RSU awards that are vested or scheduled to vest within 60 days of the Record Date.
- Represents (i) 115,770 shares of common stock issuable upon the exercise of options held by Mr. Uzonwanne exercisable within 60 days of the Record Date and (ii) 150,000 RSU awards that are vested or scheduled to vest within 60 days of the Record Date.
- 16) Mr. Yeaton's employment as interim Chief Financial Officer ceased as of August 19, 2020.
- 17) Represents 938 shares of common stock held by Mr. Yeaton.
- 18) Mr. McNulty tendered his resignation as an executive officer of MyMD Florida on April 15, 2021, effective upon the closing of the Merger on April 16, 2021.
- 19) Represents (i) 532,543 shares of common stock and (ii) 1,119,110 shares of common stock issuable upon the exercise of options held by Mr. McNulty exercisable within 60 days of the Record Date.
- 20) Represents (i) 154,360 shares of common stock issuable upon the exercise of options held by Dr. Kaplin exercisable within 60 days of the Record Date and (ii) 600,000 RSU awards that are vested or scheduled to vest within 60 days of the Record Date.

18

#### CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

Transactions with related persons are governed by our Code of Business Ethics and Conduct, which apply to all of our associates, as well as each of our directors and certain persons performing services for us. This code covers a wide range of potential activities, including, among others, conflicts of interest, self-dealing and related party transactions. Waiver of the policies set forth in this code will only be permitted when circumstances warrant. Such waivers for directors and executive officers, or that provide a benefit to a director or executive officer, may be made only by our Board, as a whole, or the Audit Committee and must be promptly disclosed as required by applicable law or regulation. Absent such a review and approval process in conformity with the applicable guidelines relating to the particular transaction under consideration, such arrangements are not permitted. All related party transactions for which disclosure is required to be provided herein were approved in accordance with our Code of Business Ethics and Conduct and Whistleblower Policy.

Other than compensation agreements and other arrangements which are described as required under "Director Compensation" and "Executive Compensation" and below, since January 1, 2019, there has not been, and there is not currently proposed, any transaction or series of similar transactions to which we were or will be a party in which the amount involved exceeded or will exceed the lesser of \$120,000 or the average of our total assets at year-end for the last two completed fiscal years and in which any director, executive officer, holder of 5% or more of any class of our capital stock, or any member of their immediate family had or will have a direct or indirect material interest.

On November 11, 2020, the Company entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement (the "Private Placement SPA") with certain institutional and accredited investors (the "SPA Purchasers"), including Iroquois Master Fund Ltd. ("IMF") and its affiliate, Iroquois Capital Investment Group, LLC ("ICIG") Intracoastal Capital, LLC ("Intracoastal" and Mainfield Enterprises Inc. ("Mainfield"), pursuant to which the Company agreed to issue and sell to the SPA Purchasers certain securities in a private placement (the "Private Placement"). In connection with the Private Placement, IMF and ICIG received an aggregate of 1,040,540 shares (520,270 after giving effect to the Reverse Split) of the Company's common stock, 1,040,540 Pre-Funded Warrants (520,270 after giving effect to the Reverse Split); Intracoastal received 729,729 shares (364,865 after giving effect to the Reverse Split) in the Company's common stock, and 729,729 Investor Warrants (364,865 after giving effect to the Reverse Split) and Mainfield received 1,081,081 shares (540,541 after giving effect to the Reverse Split) of the Company's common stock, and 1,081,081 Investor Warrants (540,541 after giving effect to the Reverse Split).

#### **MyMD Florida Related Party Transactions**

On November 11, 2020, in connection with the merger (the "Merger") by and between XYZ Merger Sub Inc., a Florida corporation and wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, and MyMD Pharmaceuticals (Florida), Inc., a Florida corporation formerly known as MyMD Pharmaceuticals, Inc. ("MyMD Florida"), MyMD Florida entered into the Supera Asset Purchase Agreement, pursuant to which MyMD Florida agreed to acquire from Supera substantially all of the assets (including all rights to Supera-1R) and certain obligations of Supera in consideration of the issuance to Supera of an aggregate of 33,937,909 shares of MyMD Florida common stock. (After giving effect to the Exchange Ratio and the Reverse Split, such shares of MyMD Florida common stock are equivalent to 13,096,639 shares of the Company's common stock.) Supera is owned principally by The Starwood Trust, a trust for which MyMD Florida's founder Jonnie R. Williams, Sr. was the settlor/grantor; Mr. Williams did not have voting or investment power of the MyMD Florida shares held by the trust. Supera is a Florida corporation that was incorporated in September 2018 by Mr. Williams and The Starwood Trust to develop and commercialize Supera-1R, and in December 2018, Mr. Williams assigned his rights and intellectual property relating to Supera-1R to Supera. As partial consideration for such assignment, Supera has granted to SRQ Patent Holdings II, a royalty with respect to product sales and other consideration arising from the assigned intellectual property.

On November 11, 2020, Supera entered into an Amended and Restated Confirmatory Patent Assignment and Royalty Agreement, with SRQ Patent Holdings II under which Supera (or its successor) is obligated to pay to SRQ Patent Holdings II (or its designees) certain royalties on product sales or other revenue received on products that incorporate or are covered by the intellectual property that was assigned to Supera by Mr. Williams. The royalty is equal to 8% of the net sales price on products sales and, without duplication, 8% of milestone revenue or sublicense compensation. This agreement was assumed by MyMD Florida in connection with the Supera Purchase and remained in place following the Merger. SRQ Patent Holdings II is an affiliate of Mr. Williams.

On November 11, 2020 MyMD Florida entered into an Amended and Restated Confirmatory Patent Assignment and Royalty Agreement with SRQ Patent Holdings under which MyMD Florida (or its successor) would be obligated to pay to SRQ Patent Holdings (or other designees) certain royalties on product sales or other revenue received on products that incorporate or are covered by the intellectual property that was assigned to MyMD Florida by SRQ Patent Holdings. The royalty is equal to 8% of the net sales price on product sales and, without duplication, 8% of milestone revenue or sublicense compensation. This agreement remained in place following the Merger. SRQ Patent Holdings is an affiliate of Mr. Williams.

On November 11, 2020, MyMD Florida, The Starwood Trust and Mr. Williams agreed to cancel options to purchase an aggregate of 31,300,000 of MyMD Florida common stock and terminate the underlying stock option award agreements. After giving effect to the Exchange Ratio and the Reverse Split, such options to purchase MyMD Florida common stock are equivalent to options to purchase 12,078,670 shares of the Company's common stock.

Upon the completion of the Merger, all amounts due and owing with respect to the line of credit established between MyMD Florida and The Starwood Trust were paid off in full. The Starwood Trust is a trust for which Mr. Williams was the settlor/grantor; Mr. Williams did not have voting or investment power of the MyMD Florida shares

#### **DELINQUENT SECTION 16(a) REPORTS**

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, requires our directors and officers, and persons who own more than ten percent of our common stock, to file with the SEC initial reports of ownership and reports of changes in ownership of our common stock.

Based solely upon a review of copies of Section 16(a) reports and representations received by us from reporting persons, and without conducting any independent investigation of our own, in fiscal year 2020, all Forms 3, 4 and 5 were timely filed with the SEC by such reporting persons.

20

#### EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

#### **Executive Officers**

The following table sets forth the names, ages and positions of our executive officers as of November 22, 2021:

Name	Age	Position with the Company
Chris Chapman, M.D.	69	President and Chief Medical Officer
Adam Kaplin, M.D., Ph.D.	55	Chief Scientific Officer
Paul Rivard, Esq.	51	Executive Vice President of Operations and General Counsel
Ian Rhodes	49	Chief Financial Officer

Please see biography of Dr. Chapman on page 7 of this Proxy Statement.

Adam Kaplin, M.D., Ph.D. has been our Chief Scientific Officer since April 16, 2021. He previously served as Chief Scientific Officer of MYMD Florida effective as of December 18, 2020. Prior to joining MYMD Florida, Dr. Kaplin has served in a number of positions at John Hopkins University, including Principal Neuro-Psychiatric Consultant to the Johns Hopkins Multiple Sclerosis Center of Excellence, Director of the Johns Hopkins Ketamine Clinic and the Departments of Psychiatry & Neurology at Johns Hopkins University School of Medicine, positions he has held at various times from 2002 to present. In addition, since 2019, Dr. Kaplin has served as Adjunct Faculty at the George Mason University Department of Global and Community Health. Dr. Kaplin has also served as Co-Founder of numerous healthcare related startups, including, from 2018 to present, REWARD Pathways Inc., a company devoted to addiction treatment development focused on a combined eHealth and medicine approach to curing addiction, and from 2016 to present, Hollinger Kaplin Benjamin & Bond, an eHealth software development company. Dr. Kaplin's research focuses on the investigation of the biological basis of immune mediated depression and cognitive impairment by using multiple sclerosis as the model. Dr. Kaplin has also been active for over a decade in the development and application of health information technology to mental health, combining this work with providing neuropsychiatric consultation and ongoing care of patients with multiple sclerosis spectrum disorders. Dr. Kaplin's original research has been published over 40 times in several different publications, and he has authored or co-authored numerous review articles and textbooks. Dr. Kaplin received his B.S. in Biology from Yale University, graduating cum laude in 1988, and received his M.D. and Ph.D. from the Johns Hopkins University School of Medicine in 1996.

Paul Rivard, Esq. has been our Executive Vice President of Operations and General Counsel since April 16, 2021. He previously served as Executive Vice President of Operations and General Counsel of MYMD Florida effective as of September 21, 2020. Prior to joining MYMD Florida, Mr. Rivard was a principal shareholder of Banner Witcoff, a national law firm specializing in intellectual property law, from 2003–2020, and in that capacity also served as Chair of the firm's Prosecution Policies and Procedures Committee, developing and refining internal procedures, workflow, and docketing practices to improve efficiencies and mitigate risk. Before becoming a principal shareholder, Mr. Rivard was an associate at Banner Witcoff from 1998–2002. In addition, prior to his time at Banner Witcoff, Mr. Rivard served as a patent examiner for the United States Patent and Trademark Office from 1992–1998. Mr. Rivard brings more than 20 years of experience as intellectual property counsel for clients ranging from startups to Fortune 100 companies in the life sciences, chemical and consumer product industries, including primary outside intellectual property counsel for MYMD Florida from 2014–2020. Mr. Rivard has worked closely with strategic decision makers and in-house counsel of his numerous clients, seeking to align intellectual property procurement, enforcement and licensing strategies with business objectives. Mr. Rivard received his Juris Doctor from Catholic University of America's Columbus School of Law, graduating cum laude in 1998, and his B.S. in Chemical Engineering from Clarkson University in 1992.

Ian Rhodes has been our Interim Chief Financial Officer since February 1, 2021. Mr. Rhodes joined Brio Financial Group ("Brio")in January 2021. From March 2020 to December 2020, Mr. Rhodes served as the Interim CFO of Roadway Moving and Storage. From November 2018 to July 2019, he served as Interim CFO of Greyston Bakery and Foundation. From December 2016 to September 2018, Mr. Rhodes served as President, CEO and Director of GlyEco, Inc., and served as CFO of GlyEco, Inc. from February 2016 to December 2016. From May 2014 to January 2016, he served as CFO of Calmare Therapeutics. Mr. Rhodes began his career at PricewaterhouseCoopers, where he worked for 15 years. Mr. Rhodes holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Business Administration with a concentration in Accounting from Seton Hall University and is a licensed CPA in New York

2.1

#### **Summary Compensation Table**

The following table summarizes information regarding the compensation awarded to, earned by or paid to, our former Chief Executive Officer, and our other most highly compensated executive officer other than the former Chief Executive Officer whose salary, as determined by Regulation S-K, Item 402, exceeded \$100,000 (the individuals falling within categories (i) and (ii) are collectively referred to as the "named executive officers").

Effective as of 4:05 pm Eastern Time on April 16, 2021, we filed an amendment to our Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation to effect a reverse stock split (the "Reverse Split") of the issued and outstanding shares of our common stock, at a ratio of one share for two shares. The stock awards listed below have been adjusted to give effect to the Reverse Split.

Name and Principal Position	Year	Salary \$	Bonus \$	Stock Awards \$(1)	All Other Compensation \$	Total \$
Howard R. Yeaton (2) Former Chief Executive Officer and Interim Chief Financial Officer	2020 2019	228,386 300,000	- -	26,302	12,000 12,000	240,386 338,302

Christopher C. Schreiber (3)						
Former President and	2020	300,000	150,000	590,240(4)	57,618	1,097,858
Chief Executive Officer	2019	50,000	_	_	4.637	54.637

- In accordance with SEC rules, this column reflects the aggregate fair value of stock awards granted during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2020, computed as of their respective grant dates in accordance with Financial Accounting Standard Board Accounting Standards Codification ("FASB ASC") Topic 718 for share-based compensation transactions.
- (2) During the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, Financial Consulting Strategies LLC, a consulting firm owned by Mr. Yeaton, provided services to us valued at \$14,500 and \$38,888, respectively. Mr. Yeaton was appointed as Chief Executive Officer and interim Chief Financial Officer on October 5, 2018. On January 6, 2020, Mr. Yeaton entered into a new employment agreement with us whereby he would serve solely as the interim Chief Financial Officer. Pursuant to a mutual understanding between the Company and Mr. Yeaton, Mr. Yeaton's employment as interim Chief Financial Officer ceased as of August 19, 2020.
- (3) On January 24, 2020, Mr. Schreiber entered into an employment agreement, under which he would receive an annual salary of \$300,000. On November 20, 2020, Mr. Schreiber resigned from his position as Executive Chairman of the Company's Board of Directors and was appointed as the Company's Chief Executive Officer. Mr. Schreiber continued to serve in his position as President of the Company and his employment agreement with the Company remained in effect. Effective April 16, 2021, Mr. Schreiber resigned his position as the Company's President and Chief Executive Officer.
- (4) On September 11, 2020, the Company granted each director restricted stock units ("RSUs") to purchase shares of the Company's common stock, and Mr. Schreiber was granted 109,750 RSUs.

#### Narrative Disclosure to Summary Compensation Table

We had entered into employment agreements with each of our Named Executive Officers.

#### Employment of Howard Yeaton

Effective on October 5, 2018, the Board appointed Howard R. Yeaton, who through FCS served previously as a consultant to us, to serve as our Chief Executive Officer and interim Chief Financial Officer. In connection with his appointment as our Chief Executive Officer and interim Chief Financial Officer, we and Mr. Yeaton entered into an offer of employment, dated October 5, 2018, which terminated on December 31, 2019. The employment agreement provided for, among other compensation, a monthly grant of 156 unrestricted shares of our common stock pursuant to the 2017 Plan (as defined herein). Mr. Yeaton is the managing principal of FCS and we had an ongoing relationship with FCS as of July 13, 2020, with FCS continuing to provide accounting services to us, and may continue to utilize the services of FCS in the future. FCS is considered to be a related party. During the year ended December 31, 2019, we expensed \$38,888 to FCS. During the year ended December 31, 2018, we expensed \$104,749 to FCS (including fees incurred prior to the date that Mr. Yeaton began to serve as an officer of our Company) in connection with these services. During the year ended December 31, 2020, the Company incurred costs of \$14,500 with FCS in connection with these services. As of December 31, 2020 the Company had an obligation to FCS in the amounts of \$0. On November 1, 2019, the Board provided Mr. Howard R. Yeaton with sixty (60) days' notice of its intent to terminate him from each of his officer positions as our Chief Executive Officer and interim Chief Financial Officer. Effective January 6, 2020, Mr. Yeaton no longer served as our Chief Executive Officer.

22

On January 6, 2020, the Board appointed Howard R. Yeaton as our interim Chief Financial Officer. In connection with his appointment as our interim Chief Financial Officer, we and Mr. Yeaton entered into a new offer of employment, dated January 6, 2020, which terminated on August 19, 2020. Pursuant to such agreement, Mr. Yeaton received: (i) twenty-five thousand dollars (\$25,000) per month in base salary, (ii) Mr. Yeaton was afforded other employee benefits including, health insurance, dental insurance, basic life and accidental death and dismemberment insurance, long and short term disability insurance and participation in our 401(k) Plan, and (iii) was reimbursed for reasonable and necessary travel and business expenses including the expenses of travel and hotel stays in or near Thorofare, New Jersey. Pursuant to a mutual understanding between the Company and Mr. Yeaton, Mr. Yeaton's employment as interim Chief Financial Officer ceased as of August 19, 2020.

#### Employment of Christopher C. Schreiber

On January 24, 2020, the Board independently reviewed and approved entering into an executive chairman agreement with Christopher C. Schreiber (the "Executive Chairman Agreement"). Pursuant to the Executive Chairman Agreement, Mr. Schreiber would continue to serve as the Executive Chairman of the Board as long as he was a member of the Board, or until termination of the Executive Chairman Agreement (as described below) or upon his earlier death, incapacity, removal, or resignation. Pursuant to the Executive Chairman Agreement, Mr. Schreiber was entitled to receive: (i) an annual base salary of \$300,000, payable monthly in equal installments, paid retroactively as of November 1, 2019 (it being agreed that such fee would be inclusive of any fees associated with Schreiber's services as both a director of our company and in the capacity of Executive Chairman), (ii) employee benefits including health insurance, dental insurance, basic life and accidental death and dismemberment insurance, long and short term disability insurance and participation in our 401(k) Plan, (iii) annual or other bonuses in cash and/or in securities of our company and/or otherwise, which bonuses, if any, shall be awarded in the complete discretion of the Board or a designated committee thereof and (iv) reimbursements for pre-approved reasonable business-related expenses incurred in good faith in the performance of Mr. Schreiber's duties for us.

The Executive Chairman Agreement established an "at will" employment relationship pursuant to which Mr. Schreiber served as Executive Chairman. We had the right to terminate the Executive Chairman Agreement for any reason or no reason, and Mr. Schreiber had the right to voluntarily resign for any reason or no reason with sixty (60) days' notice. The Executive Chairman Agreement also provided that Mr. Schreiber may not compete against us or solicit our employees or customers for a period of one (1) year after termination of the Executive Chairman Agreement or his association with us for any reason. On November 20, 2020, Mr. Schreiber resigned from his position as Executive Chairman of the Board and was appointed as the Chief Executive Officer, effective November 20, 2020, with Mr. Schreiber to continue serving as our principal executive officer and president. Mr. Schreiber's Executive Chairman Agreement remained in effect, except for the title of his position, until on April 15, 2021, Mr. Schreiber tendered his resignation from his position as Chief Executive Officer of the Company, effective April 16, 2021, upon closing of the Merger.

#### Brio Financial Group

On July 21, 2020, the Company entered into a CFO Consulting Agreement (the "CFO Consulting Agreement") with Brio, pursuant to which the Company appointed Mr. Stuart Benson as Interim Chief Financial Officer, effective August 19, 2020, with a term ending June 30, 2021. Pursuant to the CFO Consulting Agreement, the Company paid Brio an initial retainer fee of \$7,500 and a fixed monthly payment of \$13,500, commencing August 15, 2020. On January 28, 2021, Stuart Benson notified the Company that his employment as Interim Chief Financial Officer of the Company would cease effective as of January 29, 2021, as Mr. Benson's employment with Brio would come to an end on the same date. Effective as of February 1, 2021, the Company appointed Ian Rhodes as its new Interim Chief Financial Officer, pursuant to the same CFO Consulting Agreement, with a term ending June 30, 2021. While the CFO Consulting Agreement expired on June 30, 2021, Mr. Rhodes continues to serve as the Company's interim chief financial officer under the same terms set forth in the CFO Consulting Agreement.

MyMD Florida's named executive officers for 2020 were as follows:

- James A. McNulty, CPA, former Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer and Secretary;
- Chris Chapman, M.D., President and Chief Medical Officer; and
- Adam Kaplin, M.D., Ph.D., Chief Scientific Officer.

The following table sets forth total compensation paid to the named executive officers of MyMD Florida for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2020. All amounts in the table below are rounded to the nearest whole dollar.

All othor

Name and Principal Position	Year	5	Salary (\$)	Bonus (\$)	Option ants (\$)(1)	ensation (\$)	Total (\$)
James A. McNulty, CPA	2019	\$	-	\$ -	\$ 293,500(4)	\$ -	\$ 293,500
Former Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer,							
Treasurer and Secretary	2020	\$	-	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -
Chris Chapman, M.D.(2)	2019	\$	-	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -
President and Chief Medical Officer	2020	\$	27,500	\$ -	\$ 270,000(5)	\$ -	\$ 297,500
Adam Kaplin, M.D., Ph.D.	2019	\$	-	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -
Chief Scientific Officer(3)	2020	\$	20,833	\$ 100,000	\$ 240,000(6)	\$ -	\$ 360,833

- (1) Amounts reflect the full grant-date fair value of option awards granted during the relevant fiscal year computed in accordance with ASC Topic 718, rather than the amounts paid to or realized by the named individual. MyMD provides information regarding the assumptions used to calculate the value of all option awards made to MyMD Florida's executive officers in Note 5 to the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2019 filed as Exhibit 99.1 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K/A filed with the SEC on July 2, 2021.
- (2) Dr. Chapman was appointed President and Chief Medical Officer of MyMD Florida effective November 1, 2020.
- (3) Dr. Kaplin was appointed Chief Scientific Officer of MyMD Florida effective December 18, 2020.
- (4) Consists of a grant of options to purchase 500,000 shares of MyMD Florida common stock at an exercise price of \$1.00 per share made to Mr. McNulty on August 28, 2019. All such options vested immediately upon grant and had an aggregate fair value on the date of grant of \$293,500. There was no incremental increase in the fair value of such options attributable to the amendment of such options, effective November 10, 2020, entered into in connection with the Merger Agreement. After giving effect to the Exchange Ratio and the Reverse Split, such MyMD Florida options became options to purchase 192,950 shares of the Company's common stock at an exercise price of \$2.59.
- (5) Consists of (i) a discretionary grant of options to purchase 200,000 shares of MyMD Florida common stock at an exercise price of \$2.59 per share made to Dr. Chapman on August 2, 2020 and (ii) a grant of options to purchase 250,000 shares of MyMD Florida common stock at an exercise price of \$1.00 per share made to Dr. Chapman on November 1, 2020 in connection with his appointment as President and Chief Medical Officer. All such options vested immediately upon grant and had an aggregate fair value on the date of grant of \$270,000. There was no incremental increase in the fair value of such options attributable to the amendment of such options, effective November 10, 2020, entered into in connection with the Merger Agreement. After giving effect to the Exchange Ratio and the Reverse Split, such MyMD Florida options for such grants became options to purchase 77,180 and 96,475 shares of the Company's common stock at an exercise price of \$2.59.
- (6) Consists of a grant of options to purchase 400,000 shares of MyMD Florida common stock at an exercise price of \$1.00 per share made to Dr. Kaplin on December 18, 2020 in connection with his appointment as Chief Scientific Officer. All such options vested immediately upon grant and had an aggregate fair value on the date of grant of \$240,000. After giving effect to the Exchange Ratio and the Reverse Split, such MyMD Florida options became options to purchase 154,360 shares of the Company's common stock at an exercise price of \$2.59.

24

#### Narrative Disclosure to Summary Compensation Table (MyMD Florida)

Mr. McNulty did not have a written employment agreement or other arrangement with MyMD Florida. Other than the grants of options to purchase MyMD Florida common stock granted to Mr. McNulty and described further below under the heading "Equity Compensation (MyMD Florida)," Mr. McNulty did not receive any compensation from MyMD Florida in respect of his service as a named executive officer of MyMD Florida for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2019 or December 31, 2020. Mr. McNulty tendered his resignation as an executive officer of MyMD Florida on April 15, 2021, effective upon the closing of the Merger on April 16, 2021.

MyMD Florida entered into employment agreements with each of Chris Chapman, M.D. and Adam Kaplin, M.D., Ph.D., each becoming effective in the fiscal year ended December 31, 2020. The material terms of the employment agreements with Dr. Chapman and Dr. Kaplin, as applicable and as currently in effect, are summarized below.

#### Chris Chapman, M.D. Employment Agreement

Pre-Merger Employment Agreement

Effective November 1, 2020, MyMD Florida and Dr. Chapman entered into an employment agreement, which was subsequently amended by that certain First Amendment to Employment Agreement, dated December 18, 2020, that certain Second Amendment to Employment Agreement agreement, go 2021, and that certain Third Amendment to Employment Agreement agreement agreement, as amended, the "Chapman Employment Agreement"), pursuant to which Dr. Chapman was appointed President and Chief Medical Officer of MyMD Florida. Under the Chapman Employment Agreement, Dr. Chapman is entitled to an annual base salary of \$165,000, payable monthly. Dr. Chapman is also eligible to receive bonus compensation in the form of lump-sum cash payments made within 30 days following the completion of certain specified "Bonus Events" (as defined in the Chapman Employment Agreement). The aggregate amount of bonus compensation payable to Dr. Chapman upon achievement of all specified Bonus Events is \$800,000. In addition, Dr. Chapman is eligible to receive additional bonus compensation in connection with his annual performance, determined in the sole discretion of MyMD Florida's board of directors. Pursuant to and on the effective date of the Chapman Employment Agreement, Dr. Chapman was also granted options to purchase 250,000 shares of MyMD Florida common stock, at an exercise price of \$1.00 per share. (After giving effect to the Exchange Ratio and the Reverse Split, such MyMD Florida options became options to purchase 96,475 shares of the Company's common stock at an exercise price of \$2.59.) Such options all vested immediately upon grant. The options had an original term of lasting until the earlier of (i) ten years from the date of grant or (ii) the second-year anniversary of the effective date of the merger, which occurred on April 16, 2021). MyMD Florida also agreed to provide and cover the cost of health insurance and disability policies for Dr. Chapman during the term of employment under the Chapman Employment Agreement.

Dr. Chapman's employment with MyMD Florida pursuant to the Chapman Employment Agreement commenced as of the effective date of the Chapman Employment Agreement and was to continue for a period of two years, unless earlier terminated by either party, with such termination effective upon the provision of written notice to the other party. In the event of termination of Dr. Chapman's employment with MyMD Florida for cause, MyMD Florida was to pay to Dr. Chapman his monthly base salary for a period of three months following the date that notice of termination of employment is provided, which would be the full extent of MyMD Florida's obligations with respect to severance payments to Dr. Chapman under the Chapman Employment Agreement.

The Chapman Employment Agreement also contains certain standard confidentiality, work for hire and assignment of inventions provisions.

Post-Merger Employment Agreement

Immediately following the effective time of the Merger, the Board appointed Dr. Chapman to the offices of President and Chief Medical Officer on the terms of the Chapman Employment Agreement.

#### Adam Kaplin, M.D., Ph.D. Employment Agreement

Pre-Merger Employment Agreement

Effective December 18, 2020, MyMD Florida and Dr. Kaplin entered into an employment agreement, which was subsequently amended by that certain First Amendment to Employment Agreement, dated February 11, 2021 (such agreement, as amended, the "Kaplin Employment Agreement"), pursuant to which Dr. Kaplin was appointed Chief Scientific Officer of MyMD Florida. Under the Kaplin Employment Agreement, Dr. Kaplin is entitled to an annual base salary of \$250,000, payable monthly. Dr. Kaplin is also eligible to receive bonus compensation in the form of lump-sum cash payments made within 30 days following the completion of certain specified "Bonus Events" (as defined in the Kaplin Employment Agreement). The aggregate amount of bonus compensation payable to Dr. Kaplin upon achievement of all specified Bonus Events is \$800,000. In addition, Dr. Kaplin is eligible to receive additional bonus compensation in connection with his annual performance, determined in the sole discretion of MyMD Florida's board of directors. On the effective date of the Kaplin Employment Agreement, Dr. Kaplin received a signing bonus in the form of a lump-sum cash payment in the amount of \$100,000 and was also granted options to purchase 400,000 shares of MyMD Florida common stock, at an exercise price of \$1.00 per share. (After giving effect to the Exchange Ratio and the Reverse Split, such MyMD Florida options became options to purchase 154,360 shares of the Company's common stock at an exercise price of \$2.59.) Such options all vested immediately upon grant. The options had an original term of lasting until the earlier of (i) ten years from the date of grant or (ii) the second-year anniversary of the effective date of a "Reorganization Event" as defined in the MyMD Florida Incentive Plan (the practical effect of which makes the term of such options expire on the second-year anniversary of the effective date of the merger, which occurred on April 16, 2021). MyMD Florida also agreed to provide and cover the cost of health insurance and disability pol

Dr. Kaplin's employment with MyMD Florida pursuant to the Kaplin Employment Agreement commenced on December 18, 2020 and was to continue for a term of two years unless earlier terminated by either party, with such termination effective upon the provision of written notice to the other party. In the event of termination of Dr. Kaplin's employment with MyMD Florida for cause, MyMD Florida was to pay to Dr. Kaplin his monthly base salary for a period of three months following the date that notice of termination of employment is provided, which would be the full extent of MyMD Florida's obligations with respect to severance payments to Dr. Kaplin under the Kaplin Employment Agreement.

The Kaplin Employment Agreement also contained certain standard confidentiality, work for hire and assignment of inventions provisions.

Post-Merger Employment Agreement

Immediately following the effective time of the Merger, the Board appointed Dr. Kaplin to the office of Chief Scientific Officer on the terms of the Kaplin Employment Agreement.

#### **Equity Compensation (MyMD Florida)**

MyMD Florida only offered stock options to MyMD Florida's named executive officers (in addition to certain non-executive employees) as the long-term incentive component of MyMD Florida's compensation program. MyMD Florida's stock options were subject to the terms and conditions of the MyMD Florida Incentive Plan (as defined below) and allowed employees to purchase shares of MyMD Florida common stock at a price per share not less than the fair market value of a share of MyMD Florida common stock on the date of grant. Such options may or may not, at the discretion of the MyMD Florida board of directors, have been intended to qualify as "incentive stock options" for U.S. federal income tax purposes. Other terms of such stock options, such as vesting schedules, exercise periods and forfeiture upon termination of the participant's employment with MyMD Florida, were subject to the discretion of the board of directors of MyMD Florida and as set forth in the individual award agreements evidencing the grant of such options.

26

On August 28, 2019, Mr. McNulty received a discretionary grant of options to purchase 500,000 shares of MyMD Florida common stock, at an exercise price of \$1.00 per share. All such options vested immediately upon grant. The options had an original term of ten years from the date of grant, subject to earlier termination in the case of Mr. McNulty's termination of employment with MyMD Florida, death, disability, retirement or an "Event of Cause" (as defined in the applicable award agreement). In connection with the Merger Agreement, certain terms of such options were amended, as described in the "Joint Proxy and Consent Solicitation Statement/Prospectus" filed with the SEC on January 15, 2021, as amended (the "Merger Proxy"). After giving effect to the Exchange Ratio and the Reverse Split, such MyMD Florida options became options to purchase 385,900 shares of the Company's common stock at an exercise price of \$2.59.

On August 2, 2020, Dr. Chapman received a discretionary grant of options to purchase 200,000 shares of MyMD Florida common stock, at an exercise price of \$1.00 per share. All such options vested immediately upon grant. The options had an original term of ten years from the date of grant, subject to certain events described in the applicable award agreement, including Dr. Chapman's, death, disability, retirement or an "Event of Cause" (as defined in the applicable award agreement). In connection with the Merger Agreement, certain terms of such options were amended, as described in the Merger Proxy. After giving effect to the Exchange Ratio and the Reverse Split, such MyMD Florida options became options to purchase 77,180 shares of the Company's common stock at an exercise price of \$2.59.

In connection with his entrance into the Chapman Employment Agreement, on November 1, 2020, Dr. Chapman was granted options to purchase 250,000 shares of MyMD Florida common stock, at an exercise price of \$1.00 per share. All such options vested immediately upon grant. The options had an original term of ten years from the date of grant, subject to earlier termination in the case of Dr. Chapman's termination of employment with MyMD Florida, death, disability, retirement or an "Event of Cause" (as defined in the applicable award agreement). In connection with the Merger Agreement, certain terms of such options were amended, as described in the Merger Proxy. After giving effect to the Exchange Ratio and the Reverse Split, such MyMD Florida options became options to purchase 96,475 shares of the Company's common stock at an exercise price of \$2.59.

In connection with his entrance into the Kaplin Employment Agreement, on December 18, 2020, Dr. Kaplin was granted options to purchase 400,000 shares of MyMD Florida common stock, at an exercise price of \$1.00 per share. All such options vested immediately upon grant. The options had an original term of lasting until the earlier of (i) ten years from the date of grant or (ii) the second-year anniversary of the effective date of a "Reorganization Event" as defined in the MyMD Florida Incentive Plan (the practical effect of which makes the term of such options expire on the second-year anniversary of the effective date of the merger), subject to earlier termination in the case of Dr. Kaplin's termination of employment with MyMD Florida, death, disability, retirement or an "Event of Cause" (as defined in the applicable award agreement). After giving effect to the Exchange Ratio and the Reverse Split, such MyMD Florida options became options to purchase 154,360 shares of the Company's common stock at an exercise price of \$2.59.

In connection with the Merger Agreement, on November 10, 2020, MyMD Florida amended the option grant award agreements with Mr. McNulty and Dr. Chapman described above to, among other things, revise the term of exercisability of such option to expire on the earlier of (i) the 10th anniversary of the date of grant or (ii) the second-year anniversary of the effective date of a "Reorganization Event" as defined in the MyMD Florida Incentive Plan. The practical effect of such amendment is to revise the term of such options to expire on second-year anniversary of the effective date of the Merger.

#### **Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End**

The following table sets forth information concerning the outstanding equity awards that have been previously awarded to each of our Named Executive Officers and which remain outstanding as of December 31, 2020:

Effective as of 4:05 pm Eastern Time on April 16, 2021, we filed an amendment to our Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation to effect a reverse stock split of the issued and outstanding shares of our common stock, at a ratio of one share for two shares. The stock awards listed below have been adjusted to give effect to the Reverse Split.

	Number of Shares or	Market Value of Shares
	Units of Stock that Have	of Units of Stock That
Name	Not Vested (#)	Have Not Vested (\$)
Christopher C. Schreiber		
Executive Chairman of the Board	131,750(1)	590,240

(1) Granted on September 11, 2020. These RSUs accelerated and vested in full upon the closing of the Merger on April 16, 2021.

#### Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End (MyMD Florida)

The following table sets forth information concerning the outstanding equity awards that have been previously awarded to each of MyMD Florida's named executive officers and which remain outstanding as of December 31, 2020. MyMD Florida did not have any equity incentive plans other than the MyMD Florida Incentive Plan. As of the date hereof, there are no share-based award plans for any of MyMD Florida's named executive officers or directors. All options were fully vested as of their respective grant dates

Named Executive Officer	Number of securities underlying unexercised options (#) exercisable	Number of securities underlying unexercised options (#) unexercisable	Equity incentive plan awards: number of securities underlying unexercised unearned options (#)	Optic	on exercise price	Option expiration date(1)
James A. McNulty, CPA Former Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer and						
Secretary, Director (2)	500,000	-	-	\$	1.00	4/16/2023
	500,000	-	-	\$	1.00	4/16/2023
	1,000,000	-	-	\$	1.00	4/16/2023
	400,000	-	-	\$	1.00	4/16/2023
	500,000	-	-	\$	1.00	4/16/2023
Chris Chapman, M.D. President and Chief						
Medical Officer (3)	100,000	-	-	\$	1.00	4/16/2023
	200,000	-	-	\$	1.00	4/16/2023
	200,000	-	-	\$	1.00	4/16/2023
	250,000	-	-	\$	1.00	4/16/2023
Adam Kaplin, M.D., Ph.D. Chief Scientific Officer (4)	400,000	-	-	\$	1.00	4/16/2023

- (1) All such options vested immediately upon grant. The options had an original term of lasting until the earlier of (i) ten years from the date of grant or (ii) the second-year anniversary of the effective date of a "Reorganization Event" as defined in the MyMD Florida Incentive Plan (the practical effect of which makes the term of such options expire on the second-year anniversary of the effective date of the merger, which occurred on April 16, 2021).
- (2) After giving effect to the Exchange Ratio and the Reverse Split, such MyMD Florida options for such grants became options to purchase 192,950, 192,950, 385,900, 154,360, and 192,950 shares of the Company's common stock at an exercise price of \$2.59.
- (3) After giving effect to the Exchange Ratio and the Reverse Split, such MyMD Florida options for such grants became options to purchase 38,590, 77,180, 77,180, and 96,475 shares of the Company's common stock at an exercise price of \$2.59.
- (4) After giving effect to the Exchange Ratio and the Reverse Split, such MyMD Florida options became options to purchase 154,360 shares of the Company's common stock at an exercise price of \$2.59.

#### Other Elements of Compensation (MyMD Florida)

Pursuant to the terms of their respective employment agreements, MyMD Florida provided and covered the costs of health insurance and disability insurance policies for each of Dr. Chapman and Dr. Kaplin. For fiscal year 2020, the aggregate amounts payable with respect to premiums for such insurance policies were \$414.88 and \$6,019.80, for Dr. Chapman and Dr. Kaplin, respectively.

#### Potential Payments Upon Termination of Employment or Change in Control (MyMD Florida)

Mr. McNulty was not entitled to any payment in connection with their termination of employment resulting from or following a change in control of MyMD Florida. As noted above in the description of their applicable employment agreements, Dr. Chapman and Dr. Kaplin were each entitled to a lump-sum cash payment in an amount equal to three months of their respective base salaries in connection with the termination of their employment for cause.

27

#### **Equity Compensation Plans**

2021 Equity Incentive Plan

or shares of common stock. At the effective time of the Merger, the number of shares of common stock that were reserved for issuance pursuant to awards under the 2021 Plan was 7,228,184 shares. As of October 15, 2021, 4,433,184 shares remain available for issuance under the 2021 Plan.

Purpose. The purpose of the 2021 Plan is to enable the Company to remain competitive and innovative in its ability to attract and retain the services of key employees, key contractors, and non-employee directors of the Company or any of its subsidiaries. The 2021 Plan provides for the granting of incentive stock options, nonqualified stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock, restricted stock units, performance awards, and other awards, which may be granted singly, in combination, or in tandem, and which may be paid in cash or shares of the Company's common stock. The 2021 Plan is expected to provide flexibility to the Company's compensation methods in order to adapt the compensation of key employees, key contractors, and non-employee directors to a changing business environment, after giving due consideration to competitive conditions and the impact of applicable tax laws.

Effective Date and Expiration. The 2021 Plan was approved by the Company's Board of Directors on March 18, 2021 (the "Plan Effective Date") and approved by the Company's stockholders on April 15, 2021. The 2021 Plan will terminate on the tenth anniversary of the Plan Effective Date, unless sooner terminated by the Company's Board of Directors. No awards may be made under the 2021 Plan after its termination date, but awards made prior to the termination date may extend beyond that date in accordance with their terms.

Share Authorization. At the effective time of the Merger, the number of shares of common stock that were reserved for issuance pursuant to awards under the 2021 Plan was 7,228,184 shares, 100% of which may be delivered as incentive stock options. Shares to be issued may be made available from authorized but unissued shares of the Company's common stock, shares held by the Company in its treasury, or shares purchased by the Company on the open market or otherwise. During the term of the 2021 Plan, the Company will at all times reserve and keep enough shares available to satisfy the requirements of the 2021 Plan. If an award under the 2021 Plan is cancelled, forfeited, or expires, in whole or in part, the shares subject to such forfeited, expired, or cancelled award may again be awarded under the 2021 Plan. Awards that may be satisfied either by the issuance of common stock or by cash or other consideration shall be counted against the maximum number of shares that may be issued under the 2021 Plan only during the period that the award is outstanding or to the extent the award is ultimately satisfied by the issuance of shares. An award will not reduce the number of shares that may be issued pursuant to the 2021 Plan if the settlement of the award will not require the issuance of shares, as, for example, a stock appreciation right that can be satisfied only by the payment of cash. Shares of common stock that are otherwise deliverable pursuant to an award under the 2021 Plan that are withheld in payment of the option price of an option or for payment of applicable employment taxes and/or withholding obligations resulting from the award shall be treated as delivered to the award recipient and shall be counted against the maximum number of shares of our common stock that may be issued under the 2021 Plan. Only shares forfeited back to the Company or cancelled on account of termination, expiration, or lapse of an award shall again be available for grant of incentive stock options under the 2021 Plan but shall not incr

Administration. The 2021 Plan is administered by the compensation committee of the Board or such other committee of the board as is designated by it to administer the 2021 Plan (the "2021 Plan Administration Committee"). If necessary to satisfy the requirements of Rule 16b-3 promulgated under the Exchange Act, membership on the 2021 Plan Administration Committee shall be limited to those members of the Board who are "non-employee directors" as defined in Rule 16b-3 promulgated under the Exchange Act. At any time there is no 2021 Plan Administration Committee to administer the 2021 Plan, any reference to the 2021 Plan Administration Committee is a reference to the Board.

28

The 2021 Plan Administration Committee will determine the persons to whom awards are to be made; determine the type, size, and terms of awards; interpret the 2021 Plan; establish and revise rules and regulations relating to the 2021 Plan as well as any sub-plans for awards to be made to eligible award recipients who are not resident in the United States; establish performance goals for awards and certify the extent of their achievement; and make any other determinations that it believes are necessary for the administration of the 2021 Plan. The 2021 Plan Administration Committee may delegate certain of its duties to one or more of the Company's officers as provided in the 2021 Plan. Notwithstanding the foregoing, to the extent necessary to satisfy the requirements of Rule 16b-3 promulgated under the Exchange Act, any function relating to an award recipient subject to the reporting requirements of Section 16 of the Exchange Act shall be performed solely by the 2021 Plan Administration Committee.

Upon the adoption of the 2021 Plan, awards granted under the 2018 Plan remained in full force and effect under the terms and conditions of the 2018 Plan and in accordance with each award's respective terms.

Eligibility. Employees (including any employee who is also a director or an officer), contractors, and non-employee directors of the Company or any of its subsidiaries, whose judgment, initiative, and efforts contributed to or may be expected to contribute to the Company's successful performance, are eligible to participate in the 2021 Plan. As of the Record Date, the Company had 8 employees, 0 contractors, and 5 non-employee directors who would be eligible for awards under the 2021 Plan.

Stock Options. The 2021 Plan Administration Committee may grant either incentive stock options ("ISOs") qualifying under Section 422 of the Code, or nonqualified stock options, provided that only employees of the Company and its subsidiaries (excluding subsidiaries that are not corporations) are eligible to receive ISOs. Stock options may not be granted with an option price less than 100% of the fair market value of a share of common stock on the date the stock option is granted. If an ISO is granted to an employee who owns or is deemed to own more than 10% of the combined voting power of all classes of the Company's stock (or of any parent or subsidiary), the option price shall be at least 110% of the fair market value of a share of common stock on the date of grant. The 2021 Plan Administration Committee will determine the terms of each stock option at the time of grant, including, without limitation, the methods by or forms in which shares will be delivered to participants or registered in their names. The maximum term of each option, the times at which each option will be exercisable, and provisions requiring forfeiture of unexercised options at or following termination of employment or service generally are fixed by the 2021 Plan Administration Committee, except that the 2021 Plan Administration Committee may not grant stock options with a term exceeding 10 years or, in the case of an ISO granted to an employee who owns or is deemed to own more than 10% of the combined voting power of all classes of our stock (or of any parent or subsidiary), a term exceeding five years.

Recipients of stock options may pay the option price (i) in cash, check, bank draft, or money order payable to the order of the Company; (ii) by delivering to the Company shares of the Company's common stock (including restricted stock) already owned by the participant having a fair market value equal to the aggregate option price and that the participant has not acquired from the Company within six months prior to the exercise date; (iii) by delivering to the Company or its designated agent an executed irrevocable option exercise form, together with irrevocable instructions from the participant to a broker or dealer, reasonably acceptable to the Company, to sell certain of the shares purchased upon the exercise of the option or to pledge such shares to the broker as collateral for a loan from the broker and to deliver to the Company the amount of sale or loan proceeds necessary to pay the purchase price; (iv) by requesting that Company withhold the number of shares otherwise deliverable upon exercise of the stock option by the number of shares having an aggregate fair market value equal to the aggregate option price at the time of exercise (i.e., a cashless net exercise); and (v) by any other form of valid consideration that is acceptable to the 2021 Plan Administration Committee in its sole discretion. No dividends or dividend equivalent rights may be paid or granted with respect to any stock options granted under the 2021 Plan.

20

Stock Appreciation Rights. The 2021 Plan Administration Committee is authorized to grant stock appreciation rights ("SARs") as a stand-alone award, or freestanding SARs, or in conjunction with options granted under the 2021 Plan, or tandem SARs. SARs entitle a participant to receive an amount equal to the excess of the fair market value of a share of common stock on the date of grant. The exercise price of a SAR cannot be less than 100% of the fair market value of a share of the Company's common stock on the date of grant. The 2021 Plan Administration Committee will determine the terms of each SAR at the time of the grant, including, without limitation, the methods by or forms in which shares will be delivered to participants or registered in their names. The maximum term of each SAR, the times at which each SAR will be exercisable, and provisions requiring forfeiture of unexercised SARs at or following termination of employment or service generally are fixed by the 2021 Plan Administration Committee, except that no freestanding SAR may have a term exceeding 10 years and no tandem SAR may have a

term exceeding the term of the option granted in conjunction with the tandem SAR. Distributions to the recipient may be made in common stock, cash, or a combination of both as determined by the 2021 Plan Administration Committee. No dividends or dividend equivalent rights may be paid or granted with respect to any SARs granted under the 2021 Plan

Restricted Stock and Restricted Stock Units. The 2021 Plan Administration Committee is authorized to grant restricted stock and restricted stock units. Restricted stock consists of shares of our common stock that may not be sold, assigned, transferred, pledged, hypothecated, encumbered, or otherwise disposed of, and that may be forfeited in the event of certain terminations of employment or service, prior to the end of a restricted period as specified by the 2021 Plan Administration Committee. Restricted stock units are the right to receive shares of common stock at a future date in accordance with the terms of such grant upon the attainment of certain conditions specified by the 2021 Plan Administration Committee, which include a substantial risk of forfeiture and restrictions on their sale or other transfer by the participant. The 2021 Plan Administration Committee determines the eligible participants to whom, and the time or times at which, grants of restricted stock or restricted stock units will be made; the number of shares or units to be granted; the price to be paid, if any; the time or times within which the shares covered by such grants will be subject to forfeiture; the time or times at which the restrictions will terminate; and all other terms and conditions of the grants. Restrictions or conditions could include, but are not limited to, the attainment of performance goals (as described below), continuous service with the Company, the passage of time, or other restrictions and conditions. Except as otherwise provided in the 2021 Plan or the applicable award agreement, a participant shall have, with respect to shares of restricted stock, all of the rights of a shareholder of the Company holding the class of common stock that is the subject of the restricted stock, including, if applicable, the right to vote the common stock and the right to receive any dividends thereon, provided that (i) any dividends with respect to such a restricted stock award may be withheld by the Company for the participant's account until such award is vested, subject to such terms as determined by the 2021 Plan Administration Committee, and (ii) any dividends so withheld by the Company and attributable to any particular restricted stock award shall be distributed to such participant in cash or, at the discretion of the 2021 Plan Administration Committee, in shares of the Company's common stock having a fair market value equal to the amount of such dividends, if applicable, upon vesting of the award. If, however, such restricted stock award is forfeited, the participant's rights as to such dividends will also be forfeited.

Performance Awards. The 2021 Plan Administration Committee may grant performance awards payable at the end of a specified performance period in cash, shares of common stock, units, or other rights based upon, payable in, or otherwise related to the Company's common stock. Payment will be contingent upon achieving pre-established performance goals (as discussed below) by the end of the applicable performance period. The 2021 Plan Administration Committee will determine the length of the performance period, the maximum payment value of an award, and the minimum performance goals required before payment will be made, so long as such provisions are not inconsistent with the terms of the 2021 Plan and, to the extent an award is subject to Section 409A of the Code, are in compliance with the applicable requirements of Section 409A of the Code and any applicable regulations or guidance. In certain circumstances, the 2021 Plan Administration Committee may, in its discretion, determine that the amount payable with respect to certain performance awards will be reduced from the maximum amount of any potential awards. If the 2021 Plan Administration Committee determines, in its sole discretion, that the established performance measures or objectives are no longer suitable because of a change in the Company's business, operations, corporate structure, or for other reasons that the 2021 Plan Administration Committee deems satisfactory, the 2021 Plan Administration Committee may modify the performance measures or objectives and/or the performance period.

30

Performance Goals. Awards of restricted stock, restricted stock units, performance awards, and other awards under the 2021 Plan may be made subject to the attainment of performance goals relating to one or more business criteria which shall consist of one or more or any combination of the following criteria ("Performance Criteria"): cash (cash flow, cash generation or other cash measures); cost; revenues; sales; ratio of debt to debt plus equity; net borrowing, credit quality or debt ratings; profit before tax; economic profit; earnings before interest and taxes; earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization; gross margin; earnings per share (whether on a pre-tax, after-tax, operational or other basis); operating earnings; capital expenditures; improvements in capital structure; expenses (expense management, expense ratio, expense efficiency ratios, expense levels or other expense measures); economic value added; ratio of operating earnings to capital spending or any other operating ratios; free cash flow; profit (net profit, gross profit, operating profit, economic profit, profit margin or other corporate profit measures); net income (before or after taxes, operating income or other income measures); net sales; net asset value per share; business expansion or consolidation (the accomplishment of mergers, acquisitions, dispositions, public offerings or similar extraordinary business transactions); sales growth; price of the Company's common stock; return measures (including, without limitation, return on assets, capital, equity, investments or sales, and cash flow return on assets, capital, equity, or sales); market share; inventory levels, inventory management, inventory turn or shrinkage; stock price or performance; internal rate of return or increase in net present value; working capital targets relating to inventory and/or accounts receivable; service or product delivery or quality; customer satisfaction; employee retention; safety standards; productivity measures; cost reduction measures; strategic plan development and implementation; or total return to shareholders. Any Performance Criteria may be used to measure our performance as a whole or of any of our business units and may be measured relative to a peer group or index. Any Performance Criteria may include or exclude (i) events that are of an unusual nature or indicate infrequency of occurrence, (ii) gains or losses on the disposition of a business; (iii) changes in tax or accounting regulations or laws; (iv) the effect of a merger or acquisition, as identified in the Company's quarterly and annual earnings releases; or (v) other similar occurrences. In all other respects, Performance Criteria shall be calculated in accordance with the Company's financial statements, under generally accepted accounting principles, or under a methodology established by the 2021 Plan Administration Committee prior to the issuance of an award, which is consistently applied and identified in the Company's audited financial statements, including in footnotes, or the Compensation Discussion and Analysis sections of the Company's annual report and definitive proxy statement, as applicable.

Other Awards. The 2021 Plan Administration Committee may grant other forms of awards, based upon, payable in, or that otherwise relate to, in whole or in part, shares of the Company's common stock, if the 2021 Plan Administration Committee determines that such other form of award is consistent with the purpose and restrictions of the 2021 Plan. The terms and conditions of such other form of award shall be specified in the grant. Such other awards may be granted for no cash consideration, for such minimum consideration as may be required by applicable law, or for such other consideration as may be specified in the grant.

Vesting, Forfeiture and Recoupment, Assignment. The 2021 Plan Administration Committee, in its sole discretion, may determine that an award will be immediately vested, in whole or in part, or that all or any portion may not be vested until a date, or dates, subsequent to its date of grant, or until the occurrence of one or more specified events, subject in any case to the terms of the 2021 Plan. If the 2021 Plan Administration Committee imposes conditions upon vesting, then, subsequent to the date of grant, the 2021 Plan Administration Committee may, in its sole discretion, accelerate the date on which all or any portion of the award may be vested.

The 2021 Plan Administration Committee may impose on any award at the time of grant or thereafter, such additional terms and conditions as the 2021 Plan Administration Committee determines, including terms requiring forfeiture of awards in the event of a participant's termination of employment or service. The 2021 Plan Administration Committee will specify the circumstances on which performance awards may be forfeited in the event of a termination of service by a participant prior to the end of a performance period or settlement of awards. Except as otherwise determined by the 2021 Plan Administration Committee, restricted stock will be forfeited upon a participant's termination of employment or service during the applicable restriction period. In addition, the Company may recoup all or any portion of any shares or cash paid to a participant in connection with any award in the event of a restatement of the Company's financial statements as set forth in the Company's clawback policy, if any, as such policy may be approved or modified by the Board from time to time.

Awards granted under the 2021 Plan generally are not assignable or transferable except by will or by the laws of descent and distribution, except that the 2021 Plan Administration Committee may, in its discretion and pursuant to the terms of an award agreement, permit transfers of nonqualified stock options or SARs to (i) the spouse (or former spouse), children, or grandchildren of the participant ("Immediate Family Members"); (ii) a trust or trusts for the exclusive benefit of such Immediate Family Members; (iii) a partnership in which the only partners are (a) such Immediate Family Members and/or (b) entities which are controlled by the participant and/or his or her Immediate Family Members; (iv) an entity exempt from federal income tax pursuant to Section 501(c)(3) of the Code or any successor provision; or (v) a split interest trust or pooled income fund described in Section 2522(c)(2) of the Code or any successor provision, provided that (x) there shall be no consideration for any such transfer, (y) the applicable award agreement pursuant to which such nonqualified stock options or SARs are granted must be approved by the 2021 Plan Administration Committee and must expressly provide for such transferability, and (z) subsequent transfers of transferred nonqualified stock options or SARs shall be prohibited except those by will or the laws of descent and distribution.

Adjustments Upon Changes in Capitalization. In the event that any dividend or other distribution (whether in the form of cash, shares of the Company's common stock, other securities or other property), recapitalization, stock split, reverse stock split, rights offering, reorganization, merger, consolidation, split-up, spin-off, split-off, combination, subdivision, repurchase, or exchange of shares of common stock or other securities of the Company, or other similar corporate transaction or event affects the fair value of an award, then the 2021 Plan Administration Committee shall adjust any or all of the following so that the fair value of the award immediately after the transaction or event is equal to the fair value of the award immediately prior to the transaction or event: (i) the number of shares and type of common stock (or the securities or property) which thereafter may be made the subject of awards; (ii) the number of shares and type of common stock (or other securities or property) specified as the annual per-participant limit under the 2021 Plan; (iv) the option price of each outstanding stock option; (v) the amount, if any, the Company pays for forfeited shares in accordance with the terms of the 2021 Plan; and (vi) the number of or exercise price of shares then subject to outstanding SARs previously granted and unexercised under the 2021 Plan, to the end that the same proportion of the Company's issued and outstanding shares of common stock in each instance shall remain subject to exercise at the same aggregate exercise price; provided, however, that the number of shares of common stock (or other securities or property) subject to any award shall always be a whole number. Notwithstanding the foregoing, no such adjustment shall be made or authorized to the extent that such adjustment would cause the 2021 Plan or any stock option to violate Section 422 of the Code or Section 409A of the Code. All such adjustments must be made in accordance with the rules of any securities exchange, stock market, or s

Amendment or Discontinuance of the 2021 Plan. The Board may, at any time and from time to time, without the consent of participants, alter, amend, revise, suspend, or discontinue the 2021 Plan in whole or in part; provided, however, that (i) no amendment that requires shareholder approval in order for the 2021 Plan and any awards under the 2021 Plan to continue to comply with Sections 421 and 422 of the Code (including any successors to such sections or other applicable law) or any applicable requirements of any securities exchange or inter-dealer quotation system on which our stock is listed or traded, shall be effective unless such amendment is approved by the requisite vote of our shareholders entitled to vote on the amendment; and (ii) unless required by law, no action by the Board regarding amendment or discontinuance of the 2021 Plan may adversely affect any rights of any participants or obligations of the Company to any participants with respect to any outstanding awards under the 2021 Plan without the consent of the affected participant.

No Repricing of Stock Options or SARs. The 2021 Plan Administration Committee may not, without the approval of our shareholders, "reprice" any stock options or SARs. For purposes of the 2021 Plan, "reprice" means any of the following or any other action that has the same effect: (i) amending a stock option or SAR to reduce its option price or exercise price, respectively; (ii) canceling a stock option or SAR at a time when its option price or exercise price, respectively, exceeds the fair market value of a share of our common stock in exchange for cash or a stock option, SAR, award of restricted stock, or other equity award with an option price or exercise price that is less than the option price or exercise price of the original stock option or SAR; or (iii) taking any other action that is treated as a repricing under generally accepted accounting principles.

MyMD Florida Pre-Merger Plan

In 2016, pre-Merger MyMD Florida adopted the MyMD Pharmaceuticals, Inc. Amended and Restated 2016 Equity Incentive Plan (the "2016 Plan"). The MyMD Florida Incentive Plan provided for the issuance of up to 50,000,000 shares of pre-Merger MyMD Florida common stock. As of November 12, 2021, options to purchase 4,188,315 shares of the Company's common stock have been issued pursuant to the plan and 0 shares of common stock remain available for issuance.

Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, effective as of the effective time of the Merger, the Company assumed pre-Merger MyMD Florida's Second Amendment to Amended and Restated 2016 Stock Incentive Plan (collectively with the 2016 Plan, the "MyMD Florida Incentive Plan"), assuming all of pre-Merger MyMD Florida's rights and obligations with respect to the options issued thereunder (except that the term of the option will be amended to expire on the second-year anniversary of the effective time of closing). The assumed pre-Merger MyMD Florida's options became a number of shares of Akers common stock equal to the product of (a) the number of shares of MyMD Florida common stock subject to such option, multiplied by (b) the Exchange Ratio and rounding the resulting number down to the nearest whole share of the Company's common stock, at an exercise price per share of the Company's common stock equal to the quotient of (i) the exercise price per share of MyMD Florida common stock subject to such option immediately prior to the effective time of the merger divided by (ii) the Exchange Ratio and rounding the resulting exercise price up to the nearest whole cent, and then subsequently adjusted for the reverse stock split of the MyMD Florida common stock. Upon the closing of the Merger, the Company assumed all of pre-Merger MyMD Florida's rights and obligations under pre-Merger MyMD Florida stock options that were outstanding immediately prior to the effective time of the Merger, and no additional awards can be issued under the MyMD Florida Incentive Plan.

32

The MyMD Florida Incentive Plan authorized the grant of incentive stock options, non-qualified stock options, restricted stock, restricted stock units, and other stock-based awards, or a combination of the foregoing. MyMD Florida granted only incentive stock options and non-qualified stock options under the plan.

Authorized Shares. A total of 50,000,000 shares of MyMD Florida common stock were authorized for the grant of awards under the MyMD Florida Incentive Plan.

Plan Administration. The MyMD Florida Incentive Plan was administered by the MyMD Florida board of directors. The MyMD Florida board had the authority to grant awards under the plan and to adopt, amend, and repeal such administrative rules, guidelines, and practices relating to the plan as it deemed advisable. The MyMD Florida board had the authority to determine the persons to whom and the dates on which awards will be granted, the number of shares of common stock to be subject to each award, the time or times during the term of each award within which all or a portion of such award may be exercised, the exercise price, the type of consideration to be paid, and the other terms and provisions of each award, which need not be identical. The MyMD Florida board had the power to construe and interpret the MyMD Florida Incentive Plan and awards granted under it. All decisions, determinations and interpretations by the MyMD Florida board regarding the plan were to be final, binding and conclusive on all participants or other persons claiming rights under the plan or any award.

Options. Options granted under the MyMD Florida Incentive Plan could (i) either be "incentive stock options" within the meaning of Section 422 of the Code, or "nonqualified stock options," and (ii) become vested upon such conditions as were determined by the MyMD Florida board. Such vesting could be based on continued service to MyMD Florida over a certain period, the occurrence of certain performance milestones, or other criteria as determined by the MyMD Florida board. Options granted under the MyMD Florida Incentive Plan could be subject to different vesting terms. Options could not have an exercise price per share of less than 100% of the fair market value of a share of MyMD Florida common stock on the date of grant or a term longer than 10 years. To the extent provided by the terms of an option, a participant could satisfy any federal, state or local tax withholding obligation relating to the exercise of such option by a cash payment upon exercise, by authorizing MyMD Florida to withhold a portion of the stock otherwise issuable to the participant upon exercise, or by such other method as may be set forth in the option agreement or authorized by the MyMD Florida board. The treatment of options under the MyMD Florida Incentive Plan upon a participant's termination of employment with or service to MyMD Florida was set forth in the applicable award agreement, which typically provided that the options would terminate 24 months after a termination of employment or service. In connection with the Merger Agreement, on November 10, 2020, MyMD Florida amended each of the option grant award agreements noted above to, among other things, revise the term of exercisability of such option to expire on the earlier of (i) the 10th anniversary of the date of grant or (ii) the second anniversary of the effective date of a "Reorganization Event" as defined in the MyMD Florida Incentive Plan. Accordingly, the term of each such option was amended to expire on the second anniversary of the effective date of the Merger. Incentiv

Restricted Stock and Restricted Stock Unit Awards. Subject to certain limitations, the MyMD Florida board was authorized to grant awards of restricted stock and restricted stock units, which are rights to receive shares of MyMD Florida common stock or cash, as determined by the MyMD Florida board and as set forth in the applicable award agreement, upon the settlement of the restricted stock units at the end of a specified time. The MyMD Florida board could impose any restrictions or conditions upon the vesting of restricted stock or restricted stock unit awards, or that would provide for a delay in the settlement of a restricted stock unit award after it vests, that the committee deemed appropriate and in accordance with the requirements of Section 409A of the Code. Dividend equivalents could be credited in respect of shares covered by a restricted stock or a

restricted stock unit award, as determined by the MyMD Florida board. At the discretion of the MyMD Florida board, such dividend equivalents could be converted into additional shares covered by restricted stock or restricted stock units, as applicable. If a restricted stock or restricted stock unit award recipient's employment or service relationship with MyMD Florida terminated, any unvested portion of the restricted stock or restricted stock unit award would be forfeited, unless the participant's award agreement provided otherwise. Restricted stock and restricted stock unit awards are generally not transferable except (i) by will or by the laws of descent and distribution or (ii) to certain permitted transferees, to the extent provided in the award agreement.

33

Other Stock-Based Awards. The MyMD Florida Incentive Plan authorized the grant of other awards that are valued in whole or in part by reference to, or are otherwise based on, shares of MyMD Florida common stock or other property, including awards entitling recipients to receive shares of MyMD Florida common stock to be delivered in the future.

Certain Adjustments; Reorganization Events. In connection with any stock split, reverse stock split, stock dividend, dividend in property other than cash, recapitalization, share combination, share reclassification, spin-off, or other similar change in capitalization or event, the MyMD Florida board would equitably adjust the type(s), class(es) and number of shares of stock subject to the MyMD Florida Incentive Plan, and any outstanding awards would also be appropriately adjusted as to the type(s), class(es), number of shares and exercise price per share of common stock subject to such awards.

In the event of a "Reorganization Event" (as defined in the MyMD Florida Incentive Plan) such as certain mergers or consolidations, the MyMD Florida board could take any one or more of the following actions as to all or any (or any portion of) outstanding awards on such terms as the board determines: (i) provide that awards will be assumed, or substantially equivalent awards will be substituted, by the acquiring or succeeding corporation (or an affiliate thereof), (ii) upon written notice to a participant, provide that all of the participant's unexercised awards will terminate immediately prior to the consummation of such Reorganization Event unless exercised by the participant (to the extent then exercisable) within a specified period following the date of such notice, (iii) provide that outstanding awards shall become exercisable, realizable, or deliverable, or restrictions applicable to an award shall lapse, in whole or in part prior to or upon such Reorganization Event, (iv) in the event of a Reorganization Event under the terms of which holders of MyMD Florida common stock will receive upon consummation thereof a cash payment for each share surrendered in the Reorganization Event, make or provide for a cash payment to participants with respect to each award held by a participant equal to (A) the number of shares of MyMD Florida common stock subject to the vested portion of the award (after giving effect to any acceleration of vesting that occurs upon or immediately prior to such Reorganization Event) multiplied by (B) the excess, if any, of (I) the acquisition price in the Reorganization Event over (II) the exercise price of such award and any applicable tax withholdings, in exchange for the termination of such award, (v) provide that, in connection with a liquidation or dissolution of MyMD Florida, awards shall convey into the right to receive liquidation proceeds (if applicable, net of the exercise price thereof and any applicable tax withholdings) and (vi) any combination of the foregoing. In taking any

Amendment, Termination. The MyMD Florida board could amend, alter, suspend, discontinue, or terminate the MyMD Florida Incentive Plan, provided that no such amendment would adversely affect the rights of any participant without the participant's consent. The MyMD Florida Incentive Plan will terminate in 2026, unless earlier terminated earlier by the Company.

Company Pre-Merger Plans

On January 23, 2014, we adopted the 2013 Stock Incentive Plan ("2013 Plan"). The 2013 Plan was amended by the our Board on January 9, 2015 and September 30, 2016, and such amendments were ratified by stockholders on December 7, 2018. The 2013 Plan provides for the issuance of up to 2,162 shares of the Company's common stock, and as of October 15, 2021, 755 shares of common stock remain available for grants under the 2013 Plan.

On August 7, 2017, the stockholders approved, and the Company adopted the 2017 Stock Incentive Plan ("2017 Plan"). The 2017 Plan provides for the issuance of up to 3,516 shares of the Company's common stock. The purpose of the 2017 Plan is to provide additional incentive to those of our officers, employees, consultants and non-employee directors and our parents, subsidiaries and affiliates whose contributions are essential to the growth and success of our business. As of December 31, 2020, grants of restricted stock and options to purchase totaling 1,532 shares of common stock have been issued pursuant to the 2017 Plan and as of October 15, 2021, 1,984 shares of common stock remain available for grants under the 2017 Plan. The 2017 Plan provides for the issuance of shares of the Company's common stock through the grant of non-qualified options, incentive options, restricted stock and unrestricted stock to directors, officers, consultants, attorneys, advisors and employees.

34

On December 7, 2018, the stockholders approved, and we adopted the 2018 Plan and on August 27, 2020, the stockholders approved, and we adopted an amendment to the plan to increase the number of shares of common stock available for issuance pursuant to awards under the 2018 Plan by an additional 521,000 shares. The 2018 Plan, as amended, provides for the issuance of up to 560,063 shares of the Company's common stock. The purpose of the 2018 Plan is to provide additional incentive to those of our officers, employees, consultants and non-employee directors and to promote the success of our business. As of October 15, 2021, grants of RSUs to purchase 263,026 shares of common stock had been issued pursuant to the 2018 Plan, and 297,037 shares of common stock remained available for issuance. The 2018 Plan provides for the issuance of shares of the Company's common stock through the grant of options, restricted stock, stock appreciation rights, other stock-based awards, performance compensation awards to directors, officers, consultants, advisors and employees. In addition, the 2018 Plan provides the Compensation Committee of the Board with discretion to accelerate the vesting and exercisability of outstanding awards upon the occurrence of a change of control (as defined in the 2018 Plan).

On March 29, 2019, the Compensation Committee of the Board approved the grant of 2,601 RSUs to Mr. Schreiber. Each RSU had a grant date fair value of \$46.56 which was amortized on a straight-line basis over the vesting period into administrative expenses within our Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Loss. Such RSUs were granted under the 2018 Plan, and vested on January 1, 2020.

On September 11, 2020, the Compensation Committee of our Board approved the grant of 131,750 RSUs to Mr. Schreiber. Each RSU had a grant date fair value of \$4.48 which was amortized on a straight-line basis over the vesting period into administrative expenses within our Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Loss. Such RSUs were granted under the 2018 Plan, with 50% to vest on the first anniversary of the date of grant, and the remaining 50% to vest on the second anniversary of the date of grant, provided that the RSUs would vest immediately upon the occurrence of (i) a change in control, provided that Mr. Schreiber is employed or providing services to us and our affiliates on the closing date of such change in control, (ii) Mr. Schreiber's termination of employment or services to us and our affiliates by reason of death or disability, or (iii) Mr. Schreiber's termination of employment or services by us without cause. At our election, the vested RSUs may be settled for cash. The RSUs accelerated and vested in full upon the closing of the Merger on April 16, 2021.

#### **Equity Compensation Plan Information**

Effective as of 4:05 pm Eastern Time on April 16, 2021, we filed an amendment to our Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation to effect a reverse stock split of the issued and outstanding shares of our common stock, at a ratio of one share for two shares. The stock awards listed below have been adjusted to give effect to the Reverse Split.

The following table provides information regarding the number of securities to be issued under the Equity Compensation Plans as of the fiscal year ended December 31, 2020:

Plan Category	Number of securities to be issued upon exercise of outstanding options, warrants and rights (a)	Weighted-average exercise price of outstanding options (b)	issuance under equity compensation plans (excluding securities reflected in column (a)) (c)
Equity compensation plans approved by security holders (1)	394,680	\$ 4.48	160,320
Equity compensation plans not approved by security holders	_	_	_
Total	394,680	\$ 4.48	160,320

Securities remaining

(1) Represents shares available for issuance under the Equity Compensation Plans.

35

#### AUDIT COMMITTEE MATTERS

#### **Audit Committee Report**

The Audit Committee assists the Board in its general oversight of the Company's financial reporting processes. The Audit Committee Charter describes in greater detail the full responsibilities of the Audit Committee. During each fiscal year, the Audit Committee reviews the Company's financial statements, management reports, internal control over financial reporting and audit matters. In connection with these reviews, the Audit Committee expects to meet with management and independent public accountants at least six times each fiscal year. The Audit Committee schedules its meetings with a view to ensuring that it devotes appropriate attention to all of its tasks. These meetings include, whenever appropriate, executive sessions in which the Audit Committee meets separately with the independent public accountants, financial management personnel and legal counsel.

As part of its review of audit matters, the Audit Committee supervises the relationship between the Company and its independent registered public accountants, including: having direct responsibility for their appointment, compensation and retention; reviewing the scope of their audit services; approving audit and non-audit services; and confirming the independence of the independent public accountants. Together with senior members of the Company's financial management team, the Audit Committee reviewed the overall audit scope and plans of the independent public accountants, the results of external audit examinations, and evaluations by management of the Company's internal control over financial reporting and the quality of the Company's financial reporting.

In addition, the Audit Committee reviewed key initiatives and programs aimed at designing and maintaining an effective internal and disclosure control structure. As part of this process, the Audit Committee continued to monitor the scope and adequacy of the steps taken to maintain the effectiveness of internal procedures and controls.

In performing all of these functions, the Audit Committee acts in an oversight capacity. The Audit Committee reviews and discusses the quarterly and annual consolidated financial statements with management, and the Company's independent public accountants prior to their issuance. In its oversight role, the Audit Committee relies on the work and assurances of the Company's management, which is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, preparing the financial statements and other reports and maintaining policies relating to legal and regulatory compliance, ethics and conflicts of interest. Morison Cogen LLP is responsible for performing an independent audit of the consolidated financial statements and expressing an opinion on the conformity of those financial statements with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The Audit committee has reviewed and discussed the Company's audited consolidated financial statements and related footnotes for the year ended December 31, 2020, and the independent auditor's report on those financial statements, with management and with our independent auditor, Morison Cogen LLP.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the independent public accountants the matters required to be discussed by the applicable requirements of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board and the SEC including a discussion with management and the independent public accountants of the quality (and not merely the acceptability) of the Company's accounting principles, the reasonableness of significant estimates and judgments and the disclosures in the Company's financial statements. In addition, the Audit Committee reviewed and discussed with Morison Cogen LLP matters related to its independence, including a review of audit and non-audit fees and the written disclosures in the letter from Morison Cogen LLP to the Audit Committee required by applicable requirements of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board regarding the independent public accountant's communication with the Audit Committee concerning independence. The Audit Committee concluded that Morison Cogen LLP is independent from the Company and its management.

Taking all these reviews and discussions into account, the Audit Committee recommended to the Board that the audited financial statements be included in MyMD's Annual Report on Form 10-K for fiscal year 2020, that was filed with the SEC.

#### AUDIT COMMITTEE

Bill J White, Chairman Joshua Silverman Jude Uzonwanne

36

The Report of the Audit Committee set forth in this Proxy Statement shall not be deemed to be "soliciting material" or to be "filed" with the SEC or subject to Regulation 14A or 14C under the Exchange Act or to the liabilities of Section 18 of the Exchange Act. In addition, it shall not be deemed incorporated by reference by any statement that incorporates this Proxy Statement by reference into any filing under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Exchange Act, except to the extent that the Company specifically incorporates this information by reference.

#### Fees to Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The following is a summary of the fees billed to us by Morison Cogen LLP for professional services rendered in the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019:

Type of Service	 2020	 2019
Audit Fees	\$ 146,000	\$ 139,000
Audit-Related Fees	5,000	37,450
Tax Fees	10,000	10,000
All Other Fees	-	-
Total	\$ 161,000	\$ 186,450

Audit Fees. This category includes the audit of our annual consolidated financial statements, reviews of our financial statements included in our Form 10-Qs and services that are normally provided by our independent registered public accounting firm in connection with its engagements for those years. This category also includes advice on audit and accounting matters that arose during, or as a result of, the audit or the review of our interim financial statements.

Audit-Related Fees. This category consists of assurance and related services by our independent registered public accounting firm that are reasonably related to the performance of the audit or review of our financial statements and are not reported above under "Audit Fees." The services for the fees disclosed under this category include consents regarding equity issuances.

Tax Fees. This category typically consists of professional services rendered by our independent registered public accounting firm for tax compliance and tax advice.

All Other Fees. This category includes aggregate fees billed in each of the last two fiscal years for products and services provided by the Morison Cogen LLP, other than the services reported in the categories above.

#### **Pre-Approval Policies and Procedures**

Under the Audit Committee's pre-approval policies and procedures, the Audit Committee is required to pre-approve all fees paid to, and all services performed by, our independent registered public accounting firm. At the beginning of each year, the Audit Committee pre-approves the proposed services, including the nature, type and scope of services contemplated and the related fees to be rendered by our independent registered public accounting firm during the year. In addition, Audit Committee pre-approval is also required for those engagements that may arise during the course of the year that are outside the scope of the initial services and fees pre-approved by the Audit Committee.

All of the services rendered by Morison Cogen LLP in 2020 were pre-approved by the Audit Committee.

37

## PROPOSAL 2: RATIFICATION OF THE APPOINTMENT OF MORISON COGEN LLP AS OUR INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM FOR THE 2021 FISCAL YEAR

The Audit Committee of the Board has selected Morison Cogen LLP as our independent registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2021, and the Board has directed that management submit the selection of independent registered public accountants for ratification by the stockholders at the Annual Meeting.

Stockholder ratification of the selection of Morison Cogen LLP as our independent registered public accounting firm is not required by our Amended and Restated Bylaws or otherwise. However, the Board is submitting the selection of Morison Cogen LLP to the stockholders for ratification as a matter of good corporate practice. If the stockholders fail to ratify the selection, the Audit Committee will reconsider whether or not to retain Morison Cogen LLP. Even if the selection is ratified, the Audit Committee, at its discretion, may direct the appointment of a different independent registered public accounting firm at any time during the year if it determines that such a change would be in the best interests of the Company and its stockholders.

#### Required Vote and Board Recommendation

The affirmative vote of a majority of the votes cast for or against the proposal is required to ratify the appointment of Morison Cogen LLP as our independent registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2021. If your shares are held by a broker and you do not give the broker specific instructions on how to vote your shares, your broker may vote your shares at its discretion. Abstentions and broker non-votes will have no effect on the outcome of the vote on this proposal.

The Board recommends that you vote "FOR" the ratification of Morison Cogen LLP as our independent registered public accounting firm for the 2021 fiscal year.

#### Morison Cogen LLP Representatives at Annual Meeting

Representatives of Morison Cogen LLP are not expected to be present at the Annual Meeting.

38

#### OTHER MATTERS

The Board knows of no other business to be brought before the Annual Meeting. If, however, any other business should properly come before the Annual Meeting, the persons named in the accompanying proxy will vote the proxy in accordance with applicable law and as they may deem appropriate in their discretion, unless directed by the proxy to do otherwise.

#### Stockholder Proposals

Pursuant to Rule 14a-8 under the Exchange Act ("Rule 14a-8"), a stockholder who intends to present a proposal at our next annual meeting of stockholders (the "2022 Annual Meeting") and who wishes the proposal to be included in the proxy statement and form of proxy for that meeting must submit the proposal in writing no later than July 25, 2022, after which date such stockholder proposal will be considered untimely. Such proposal must be submitted on or before the close of business at our headquarters at 855 N. Wolfe Street, Suite 623, Baltimore, MD 21205, Attention: General Counsel.

In addition, our Bylaws provide notice procedures for stockholders to nominate a person as a director and to propose business to be considered by stockholders at a meeting. Notice of a nomination or proposal must be delivered to at our headquarters at 855 N. Wolfe Street, Suite 623, Baltimore, MD 21205, Attention: General Counsel, not less than 60 days and not more than 90 days prior to the anniversary date of the immediately preceding annual meeting, or if the date of the annual meeting is advanced more than 30 days prior to or delayed by more than 30 days after the anniversary of the preceding year's annual meeting, to be timely, notice by the stockholder must be so received not later than the close of business on the 10th day following the day on which notice of the date of the annual meeting was mailed or public disclosure of the date of the annual meeting is first given or made (which for this purpose shall include any and all filings of the Company made on the EDGAR system of the SEC or any similar public database maintained by the SEC), whichever first occurs. Accordingly, for our 2022 Annual Meeting, notice of a nomination or proposal must be delivered to us no later than October 30, 2022 and no earlier than September 30, 2022. Nominations and proposals also must satisfy other requirements set forth in the Charter and the Bylaws. To be eligible for inclusion in our proxy materials, stockholder proposals must also comply with the requirements of Rule 14a-8. If a stockholder fails to comply with the foregoing notice provision or with certain additional procedural requirements under SEC rules, the Company will have authority to vote shares under proxies we solicit when and if the nomination or proposal is raised at the annual meeting of stockholders and, to the extent permitted by law, on any other business that may properly come before the annual meeting of stockholders and any adjournments or postponements. The Chairman of the Board may refuse to acknowledge the introduction of any stockholder proposal n

A copy of our 2020 Annual Report on Form 10-K is available without charge (except for exhibits, which are available upon payment of a reasonable fee) upon written request to MyMD Pharmaceuticals, Inc., 855 N. Wolfe Street, Suite 623, Baltimore, MD 21205, Attention: General Counsel.

MYMD PHARMACEUTICALS, INC. 855 N. WOLFE STREET, SUITE 623 BALTIMORE, MD 21205

#### VOTE BY INTERNET

Before The Meeting - Go to www.proxyvote.com

Use the Internet to transmit your voting instructions and for electronic delivery of information. Vote by 11:59 p.m. Eastern Time on December 28, 2021. Have your proxy card in hand when you access the web site and follow the instructions to obtain your records and to create an electronic voting instruction form.

#### $\textit{During The Meeting-} \textbf{Go to} \\ \underline{\textbf{www.virtualshareholdermeeting.com/MYMD2021}}$

You may attend the meeting via the Internet and vote during the meeting. Have the information that is printed in the box marked by the arrow available and follow the instructions.

VOTE BY PHONE - 1-800-690-6903
Use any touch-tone telephone to transmit your voting instructions. Vote by 11:59 pm. Eastern Time on December 28, 2021. Have your proxy card in hand when you call and then follow the instructions.

VOTE BY MAIL
Mark, sign and date your proxy card and return it in the postage-paid
envelope we have provided or return it to Vote Processing, c/o Broadridge,
51 Mercedes Way, Edgewood, NY 11717.

							D63320-P64290	DETACH AND			
			THIS PE	ROXY CA	RD IS VA	LID ONL	Y WHEN SIGNED AND DATED.	DETACH AND	KETUKI	N THIS FU	KIION
YMD PHA	ARMACEUTICALS, INC.			For	Withhold	For All Except	To withhold authority to vote for any individua nominee(s), mark "For All Except" and write the	al .			
The Boa	ard of Directors recommer ng nominees:	nds yo	u vote FOR the	е		270274	number(s) of the nominee(s) on the line below.	2		-	
1. Ele	ection of Directors			0	0	0		-			
No	lominees:										8
02	Chris Chapman, M.D. Craig Eagle, M.D. Christopher C. Schreiber	05)	Joshua Silverma Jude Uzonwann Bill J. White								
The Boa	ard of Directors recommend	ds you	vote FOR the f	ollowing	proposal:				For	Against	Abst
2. To	ratify the appointment of ecember 31, 2021.	Moriso	n Cogen LLP a:	s the Com	npany's ind	dependent	registered public accounting firm for the fiscal	year ending	0	0	(
		лорст	come belore a	e meeting	or any adj	journment	thereot.				
		, open	come belove i	e meeting	or any adj	ournment	thereof.				

## Important Notice Regarding the Availability of Proxy Materials for the Annual Meeting:

The Notice and Proxy Statement and Form 10-K are available at www.proxyvote.com.

D63321-P64290

#### MYMD PHARMACEUTICALS, INC. Annual Meeting of Stockholders December 29, 2021 10:00 AM This proxy is solicited by the Board of Directors

The stockholder(s) hereby appoint(s) Chris Chapman, M.D. as proxy, with the power to appoint his substitute, and hereby authorize(s) him to represent and to vote, as designated on the reverse side of this ballot, all of the shares of (Common/ Preferred) stock of MYMD PHARMACEUTICALS, INC. that the stockholder(s) is/are entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held at 10:00 AM, EST on December 29, 2021, in a virtual format only via live audio website at www.virtualshareholdermeeting.com/MYMD2021, and any adjournment or postponement thereof.

This proxy, when properly executed, will be voted in the manner directed herein. If no such direction is made, this proxy will be voted in accordance with the Board of Directors' recommendations.

Continued and to be signed on reverse side